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m2b.	Is	site	2	in	public	(co-
located)	space	or	in	private
space?

Co located	Space

m2a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	2.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School
Leader Nordia	Hewitt

Operati
onal
Leader

Erica	Newman

Complia
nce
Contact

Robert	Ollwerther

Complai
nt
Contact

Justine	Neeson

DASA
Coordin
ator

Justine	Neeson

Phone
Contact
for	After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Erica	Newman

m2c.	Please	list	the	terms	of	your	current	co-location.

Date	school
will	leave
current	co
location

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
expand	into
current
space?

If	so,	list	year
expansion
will	occur.

Is	school
working	with
NYCDOE	to
move	to
separate
space?

If	so,	list	the
proposed
space	and
year	planned
for	move

School	at	Full
Capacity	at
Site

Site	2 N/A No No No

School	Site	3
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m3b.	Is	site	3	in	public	(co-
located)	space	or	in	private
space?

Private	Space

m3.	SCHOOL	SITES
Please	provide	information	on	site	3	for	the	upcoming	school	year.

Physical	Address Phone	Number District/CSD Grades	to	be
Served	at	Site
for	coming	year
(K 5,	6 9,	etc.)

Receives	Rental
Assistance	for
Which	Grades	(If
yes,	enter	the
appropriate
grades.	If	no,
enter	No).

Site	3
74	West	124th
Street,	New
York,	NY	10027

646 812 9700 NYC	CSD	5 K 6 2 4

m3a.	Please	provide	the	contact	information	for	Site	3.

Name Work	Phone Alternate	Phone Email	Address

School
Leader Meg	Lembo

Operati
onal
Leader

Erica	Newman

Complia
nce
Contact

Robert	Ollwerther

Complai
nt
Contact

Justine	Neeson

DASA
Coordin
ator

Justine	Neeson

Phone
Contact
for	After
Hours
Emerge
ncies

Erica	Newman
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n1.	Were	there	any	revisions	to
the	school’s	charter	during	the
2018-19	school	year?	(Please
include	approved	or	pending
material	and	non-material
charter	revisions).

No

IF	LOCATED	IN	PRIVATE	SPACE	IN	NYC	OR	IN	DISTRICTS	OUTSIDE	NYC

m3d.	Upload	a	current	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)	and	the	annual	Fire	Inspection
Report	for	school	site	3	if	located	in	private	space	in	NYC	or	located	outside	of	NYC	.

Site	3	Certificate	of	Occupancy	(COO)

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109544139/grgnexJqqo/

Site	3	Fire	Inspection	Report

https://nysed cso reports.fluidreview.com/resp/109544139/kTf19ow766/

CHARTER	REVISIONS	DURING	THE	2018-19	SCHOOL	YEAR

ATTESTATION

o.	Individual	Primarily	Responsible	for	Submitting	the	Annual	Report.

Name Robert	Ollwerther

Position Chief	Operating	Officer

Phone/Extension

Email
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Date 2019/08/01

p.	Our	signatures	(Executive	Director/School	Leader/Head	of	School	and	Board
President)	below	attest	that	all	of	the	information	contained	herein	is	truthful	and
accurate	and	that	this	charter	school	is	in	compliance	with	all	aspects	of	its	charter,
and	with	all	pertinent	Federal,	State,	and	local	laws,	regulations,	and	rules.	We
understand	that	if	any	information	in	any	part	of	this	report	is	found	to	have	been
deliberately	misrepresented,	that	will	constitute	grounds	for	the	revocation	of	our
charter.	Check	YES	if	you	agree	and	then	use	the	mouse	on	your	PC	or	the	stylist	on
your	mobile	device	to	sign	your	name).

Yes

Signature,	Head	of	Charter	School

Signature,	President	of	the	Board	of	Trustees

Thank	you.









CUSTOMER NAME: Harlem Academy Elementary School
BUILDING NAME: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
BUILDING ADDRESS: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US
TIMEZONE: GMT-04:00

INSPECTOR (s): Xavier Lopez
INSPECTION END DATE: 07/11/2019

FIRE ALARM INSPECTION REPORT

DEFICIENCIES
No deficiencies in this inspection.

Panels/Initiating Devices

PHONE JACKS

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 Roof Fl Elevator Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

2 Roof Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

3 7th Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

4 7th Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

5 7th Fl Stairs C Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

6 6th Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

7 6th Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

8 5th Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

9 5th Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

10 5th Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

11 4th Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

12 4th Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

13 4th Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

14 3rd Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

15 3rd Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

16 3rd Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

17 2nd Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

18 2nd Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

19 2nd Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

20 1St Fl Passengers Elevator
Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

21 1st Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

22 1st Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

23 BSMT Fl Fire Pump Room Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

24 BSMT Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

25 BSMT Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

26 BSMT Fl Stairs B Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

27 SC Fl Stairs A Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US

Fire Alarm v2 | 07/11/2019 Page 1 of 9



Panels/Initiating Devices

PHONE JACKS

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

28 SC Fl Sub- Cellar Área Firefighter Phone — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

FACP PANELS

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 1st Floor Main Lobby Panel — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Is the panel in a normal condition at the start of the inspection? Yes

Alarm, Supervisory, and Trouble Signals (Inputs) Yes

Circuit Supervisory (Including Opens, Shorts & Ground Faults) N/A

Alarm verification sequence verified Yes

POWER SUPPLY SUPV - LOSS OF AC POWER/BATTS N/A

Fuses/Lamps/LED Tested & Verified N/A

INTERFACE EQUIP VERIFICATION OF REQUIRED SIGNALS N/A

MAIN POWER SUPPLY TESTED UNDER FULL LOAD Yes

AMPLIFIER/TONE GENERATORS VERIFIED N/A

CALL-IN SIGNAL SILENCE - VISUAL & AUDIBLE Yes

OFF-HOOK INDICATOR VERIFIED Yes

PHONE JACKS Yes

PHONE SETS VERIFIED Yes

SYST PERF- 5 HANDSET QUALITY & CLARITY VERIFIED Yes

DOOR HOLDERS Yes

REMOTE ANNUNCIATOR(S) - OPERATION/VERIFICATION N/A

INITIATING DEVICES TEST Yes

ELEVATOR RECALL FUNCTION & SHUNT TRIP OPERATION Yes

HVAC SHUT DOWN Yes

MASTERBOX / CENTRAL STATION CONNECTION TESTED N/A

MASTERBOX / CENTRAL STATION ACCOUNT # FireTronics Include

SP HZ EQ - SQUIBB RELEASING CKT TEST N/A

ALARM NOTIFICATION APPLIANCES TESTED Yes

SIGNALS SOUNDED PER CUSTOMER REQUEST Yes

MULTIPLEX COMMUNICATIONS TESTED Yes

Primary Power- Nominal Voltage 24

Primary Power- Amps 7

Primary Power- Location N/A

Primary Power- Overcurrent Protection Type/Amps N/A

Disconnecting means location Main lobby

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US

Fire Alarm v2 | 07/11/2019 Page 2 of 9



Panels/Initiating Devices

BATTERIES

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1
Power patrol SEC 1075.

Rechargeable Battery-Non-
Spill-able-AGM 12Volt 7AH

Battery — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Quantity (Enter 2 if answering for a set) 2

Amp hour rating 7

Visual inspection Pass

Batteries less than 5 years? Pass

Manufacturer Date Code SEC1075

Voltage with charger 27.34

Voltage without charger 27.00

Load Voltage Test Pass

Load Voltage Test Results (%) 97%

SMOKE DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 7th Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S058 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

2 2nd Fl - Roof Storage S037 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

3 Basement - Storage
Room S025 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

4 2nd Fl - Hallway S078 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

5 1st Fl - Main Entrance
above FACP S074 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

6 2nd Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S038 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

7 4th Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S045 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

8 7th Fl - Electrical Closet
#2 S056 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

9 1st Fl - Electrical Closet S004 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

10 5th Fl - Electrical Closet
#2 S049 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

11 7th Fl - Storage Area S060 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

12 6th Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S053 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

13 5th Floor - Storage
Room S075 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

14 3rd Fl - Electrical Closet S040 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

15
Basement - Special
Classroom Storage

Room
S026 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

16 Sub-Cellar - Area S030 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

17 1st Fl - Library Closet S002 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

18 3rd Floor - Electrical
Closet S039 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

19 2nd Fl - Hallway S079 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

20 3rd Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S041 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

21 1st Fl - Elevator Lobby S003 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

22 Basement - Storage
Room B-2 S023 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US
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Panels/Initiating Devices

SMOKE DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

23 1st Fl - Kitchen Closet S007 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

24 5th Fl - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S047 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

25 Basement - Passenger
Elevator Lobby S018 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

26 2nd Fl - Electrical Closet S034 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

27 Sub Cellar- Electrical
Closet S033 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

28 Basement - Electrical
Closet S020 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

29 Basement - Book
Storage S017 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

30 1st Fl - Cafe Storage
Closet S016 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

31 6th Fl - Electrical Closet S052 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

32 Sub Cellar- Area S029 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

33 2nd Fl - Electrical Closet S035 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

34 7th Fl - Electrical Closet
#1 S057 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

35 1st Fl - Electrical Closet S005 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

36 4th Fl - Electrical Closet
#2 S043 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

37 Sub Cellar - Storage
Under Stairs S032 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

38 Basement - Electrical
Closet S019 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

39 Sub-Cellar - Gas Meter
Room S027 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

40 4th Fl - Electrical Closet
#1 S044 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

41 1st Fl - Closet by
Wheelchair Elevator S001 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

42 Roof - Elevator Lobby S061 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

43 5th Fl - Electrical Closet
#1 S048 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

44 2nd Fl - Hallway S080 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

45 Roof - EMR S072 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

46 Basement - Water
Sprinkler Room S021 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

DUCT DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 Roof - RTU 2A Supply S064 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

2 1st Fl - AMU 1 Return S071 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

3 1st Fl - RTU 5 Supply S012 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

4 Roof - RTU 2 Supply S062 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US
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Panels/Initiating Devices

DUCT DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

5 Roof - RTU 1 Return S069 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

6 1st Fl - RTU 3 Return S009 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

7 1st Fl - RTU 4 Supply S010 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

8 1st Fl - AMU 2 Supply S014 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

9 Roof - RTU 1A Supply S066 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

10 1st Fl - AMU 1 Supply S070 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

11 1st Fl - RTU 5 Return S013 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

12 1st Fl - RTU 4 Return S011 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

13 1st Fl - AMU 2 Return S015 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

14 Roof - RTU 2 Return S063 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

15 Roof - RTU 1 Supply S068 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

16 Roof - RTU 2A Return S065 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

17 1st Fl - RTU 3 Supply S008 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

18 Roof - RTU 1A Return S067 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Duct Detector are too high. need a lift to test. Visually inspected : normal at FACP

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 7th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

2 7th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

3 6th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

4 6th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

5 5th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

6 5th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

7 4th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

8 4th Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

9 3rd Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

10 3rd Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

11 2nd Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

12 2nd Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
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Panels/Initiating Devices

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

13 1st Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

14 1st Fl Passengers
Elevator Lobby — Door Holder — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

15 7th Fl - Janitor s Closet S059 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

16 6th Fl - Janitor s Closet S054 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

17 5th Fl - Janitors Closet S050 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

18 2nd Fl - Janitor s Closet S036 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

19 Sub-Cellar - Generator
Room S028 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

20 5th Fl - Teacher Work
Pantry S051 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

21 1st Floor - Kitchen Area S076 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

22 4th Fl - Janitor s Closet S046 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

23 Basement - Janitor s
Closet S022 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

24 3rd Fl - Janitor s Closet S042 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

25 Basement - Laundry
Room S077 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

26 Sub-Cellar M059 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

27 1st Fl - East Stairwell M007 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

28 3rd Fl - Main Stairwell M013 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

29 5th Floor - Main
Stairwell M021 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

30 4th Fl - Main Stairwell M017 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

31 5th Floor - Center
Stairwell M024 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

32 1st Fl - Main Entrance M006 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

33 5th Floor - East Stairwell M025 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

34 6th Floor - East Stairwell M030 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

35 1st Fl - East Exit M002 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

36 1st Fl - Middle Exit M065 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

37 6th Floor - Center
Stairwell M029 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

38 7th Floor - Staircase
area M109 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

39 6th Floor - Main
Stairwell M026 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

40 7th floor - Main stairwell M064 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

41 7th Floor - Center
Stairwell M032 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

42 1st Fl - Main Entrance M001 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

43 Basement - East
Stairwell M063 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

44 Roof - Bulk Head Area M075 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

45 2nd Fl - Main Stairwell M009 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

46 4th Fl - East Stairwell M020 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US
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Panels/Initiating Devices

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

47 1st Fl - Kitchen Area M008 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

48 3rd Fl - East stairwell M016 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

49 Basement - Main
Stairwell M055 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

50 Basement - East
Stairwell M056 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

51 2nd Fl - East Stairwell M012 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

52 7th Fl Stairs A L1M052 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

53 6th Fl Stairs A L1M028 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

54 5th Fl Stairs A L1M023 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

55 4th Fl Stairs A L1M019 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

56 3rd Fl Stairs A L1M015 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

57 2nd Fl Stairs A L1M011 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

58 1st Fl Stairs A L1M004 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

59 BSMT Fl Dry Pump Left L1M083 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

60 BSMT Fl Dry Pump Right L1M084 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

61 BSMT Fl Fire Main I/S B1 L1M060 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

62 BSMT Fl In WaterPump L1M085 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

63 BSMT Fl Pump Supply I/
S B1 L1M061 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

64 BSMT Fl Pump Supply I/
S B1 L1M062 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

65 BSMT Fl Sprinkle Room L1M080 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

66 BSMT Fl Sprinkle Room L1M081 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

67 BSMT Fl Sprinkle Room L1M082 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

68 BSMT Fl Stairs A L1M055 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

69 BSMT Fl WP Up Center L1M089 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

70 BSMT Fl WP Up Left L1M086 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

71 BSMT Fl WP Up Right L1M092 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

72 SC Fl Stairs A L1M057 Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

73 2nd Fl - Main Stairwell M010 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

74 4th Fl - Main Stairwell M018 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

75 1st Fl - Main Stairwell M003 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

76 Basement - Main
Stairwell M054 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

77 6th Fl - Main Stairwell M027 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

78 3rd Fl - Main Stairwell M014 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

79 5th Floor - Main
Stairwell M022 Water Flow Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/11/2019 Passed

Fire Alarm v2–Annual
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General Inspection Notes

1. Thank you for choosing Johnson controls as provider of your fire alarm inspection service, upon arrival found system in Normal condition This was a annual
inspection, cleaning , & Testing of your life safety fire alarm system. All devices Cleaning test & Inspect such as: smoke detectors, Duct Detector ,Heat Detectors
,Pull station ,did Audio visual test on floor all horn and strobe working on floor Fans shut down and did Quality Supervisory device water flows and Tamper
Switches System Restored on normal condition upon departure

Fire Alarm v2–Annual

Customer: Harlem Academy Elementary School
Building: 12054736 - Harlem Academy Elementary School
Address: 74 West 124th St, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5685, US
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CUSTOMER NAME: Harlem Academy High School
BUILDING NAME: 12308940 - Harlem Academy High School
BUILDING ADDRESS: 35 West 124th Street, NEW YORK, NY, 10027 5634, US
TIMEZONE: GMT-04:00

INSPECTOR (s): Xavier Lopez
INSPECTION END DATE: 07/10/2019

FREQUENCY: Annual

FIRE ALARM INSPECTION REPORT

DEFICIENCIES
No deficiencies in this inspection.

0001 Supervisory Act Generator Failed/. 0002 Supervisory Act Generator Running

Panels/Initiating Devices

FACP PANELS

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 Main Lobby Panel — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

Is the panel in a normal condition at the start of the inspection? No

* Panel have 2 troubles

Alarm, Supervisory, and Trouble Signals (Inputs) Yes

Circuit Supervisory (Including Opens, Shorts & Ground Faults) N/A

Alarm verification sequence verified Yes

POWER SUPPLY SUPV - LOSS OF AC POWER/BATTS N/A

Fuses/Lamps/LED Tested & Verified Yes

INTERFACE EQUIP VERIFICATION OF REQUIRED SIGNALS N/A

MAIN POWER SUPPLY TESTED UNDER FULL LOAD Yes

AMPLIFIER/TONE GENERATORS VERIFIED N/A

CALL-IN SIGNAL SILENCE - VISUAL & AUDIBLE N/A

OFF-HOOK INDICATOR VERIFIED N/A

PHONE JACKS N/A

PHONE SETS VERIFIED N/A

SYST PERF- 5 HANDSET QUALITY & CLARITY VERIFIED N/A

DOOR HOLDERS N/A

REMOTE ANNUNCIATOR(S) - OPERATION/VERIFICATION N/A

INITIATING DEVICES TEST Yes

ELEVATOR RECALL FUNCTION & SHUNT TRIP OPERATION Yes

* Elevator Recalls

HVAC SHUT DOWN Yes

MASTERBOX / CENTRAL STATION CONNECTION TESTED Yes

MASTERBOX / CENTRAL STATION ACCOUNT # N/A

SP HZ EQ - SQUIBB RELEASING CKT TEST N/A

ALARM NOTIFICATION APPLIANCES TESTED Yes

SIGNALS SOUNDED PER CUSTOMER REQUEST Yes

MULTIPLEX COMMUNICATIONS TESTED Yes

Primary Power- Nominal Voltage N/A

Primary Power- Amps 18

Primary Power- Location N/A

Primary Power- Overcurrent Protection Type/Amps N/A

Disconnecting means location Main entrance
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Panels/Initiating Devices

BATTERIES

# LOCATION DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1

Main entrance
Rechargeable-Sealed-Lead

Battery SLA1161 12Volt
44AH

Battery — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

Quantity (Enter 2 if answering for a set) 2

Amp hour rating 44

Visual inspection Pass

Batteries less than 5 years? Pass

Manufacturer Date Code LSA1161

Voltage with charger 26.92

Voltage without charger 26.30

Load Voltage Test Pass

Load Voltage Test Results (%) 97%

SMOKE DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 Roof - Elevator Machine
Room 1040013 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

2 3rd Fl - Elevator Lobby 1020258 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

3 4th - Elevator Lobby 1020253 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

4 2nd Fl - Elevator Lobby 1020017 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

5 1Fl - Elevator Lobby 1020021 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

6 5th Fl - Electrical Closet 1040001 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

7 Basement - Electrical
Closet 1020006 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

8 4th Fl - Telcom Room 1020252 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

9 Basement - Water
Service Room 1020008 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

10 4th Fl - Electrical Closet 1020251 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

11 Basement - Water
Meter Rm C14 1020005 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

12 Basement - Gas Meter
Rm C16 1020004 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

13 3rd Fl - Principal's
Office 1020259 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

14 Basement - Fuel Oil Rm 1020009 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

15 4th Fl - Kitchen Area 1020254 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

16 1st Fl - Electrical Room 1020016 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

17 Basement - Electrical
Closet 1020007 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

18 5th Fl - Elevator Lobby 1040016 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

19 1st Fl - By Vestibule
Stair C 1020012 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

20 4th Fl - Room 430B by
Shutter 1020260 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

21 1st Fl - Gallery Entrance 1020023 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

22 Basement - Fire Pump
Room 1020011 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

23 2fl - Telecom Room 214 1020019 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed
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Panels/Initiating Devices

SMOKE DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

24 3rd Fl - Electrical Rm 1020257 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

25 2nd Fl - Electrical Closet 1020018 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

26 1st Fl - Exit Passage 1020015 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

27 Roof - Top of Elev Shaft 1040012 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Cannot Inspect

Reason cannot inspect: Need elevator mechanic

28 4th Fl - Rm 430B 1020414 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

29 Basement - Electrical
Distribution Rm 1020010 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

30 Basement - Elevator
Lobby 1020001 Smoke Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

DUCT DETECTORS

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 Roof - RTU-5R 1040004 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

2 4th Fl - AHU-1 S 1040014 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

3 Roof - RTU-3S 1040010 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

4 Roof - RTU-6R 104006 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

5 Roof - RTU-6R 1040006 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

6 Roof - RTU-6S 1040007 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

7 Basement - Telecom Rm
C04 1020003 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

8 1st Fl - Exit Passage 1020020 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

9 1Fl - AC-1 Supply 1020013 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

10 Roof - RTU-4S 1040002 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

11 Roof - RTU-2R 1040008 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

12 Roof - RTU-2S 1040009 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

13 Basement - Telecom Rm
C04 1020002 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

14 Roof - RTU-5S 1040005 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

15 4th Fl - AHU-1 R 1040015 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

16 1st Fl - AC-1 Return 1020014 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

17 Roof - RTU-3R 1040011 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

18 Roof - MAU-1 Supply 1040003 Duct Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

1 1st Fl - Rm 111B 1020175 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

2 5th Fl - Rm 505 1040178 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

3 4th Fl - Rm 422A 1020397 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

4 2nd Fl - Rm 218 1020474 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

5 4th Fl - Rm 425 1020401 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed
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Panels/Initiating Devices

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

6 2nd Fl - Rm 218 Stage 1020478 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

7 4th Fl - Rm 424 1020399 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

8 5th Fl - Rm 508 1040147 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

9 1st Fl - Woman's Room 1020184 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

10 1st Fl - Gallery Entrance 1020192 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

11 4th Fl - Rm 430B 1020411 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

12 5th Fl - Rm 511 1040155 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

13 1st Fl - Library Room 1020173 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

14 4th Fl - Rm 430B 1020407 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

15 4th Fl - Rm 411 1020480 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

16 3rd Fl - Rm 321 1020461 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

17 1st Fl - Library Room 1020163 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

18 4th Fl -Kitchen 2 1020419 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

19 3rd Fl - Rm 322 1020466 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

20 3rd Fl - Rm 310 1020447 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

21 5th Fl - Rm 510 1040151 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

22 4th Fl - Rm 430B 1020409 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

23 3rd Fl - Men's Rm 1020432 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

24 4th Fl - Kitchen 1 1020242 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

25 1st Fl - Girl's Restroom 1020159 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

26 3rd Fl - Women's
Restroom 1020434 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

27 4th Fl - Rm 410 1020391 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

28 3rd Fl - Rm 304 1020443 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

29 2nd Fl - Rm 218 1020468 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

30 4th Fl - Men's
Bathroom By Stair A 1020444 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

31 3rd Fl - Rm 303 1020441 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

32 3rd Fl - Rm 320A 1020459 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

33 5th Fl - Rm 515 1040162 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

34 4th Fl - Rm 413 1020378 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

35 5th Fl - Rm 507 1040145 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

36 2nd Fl - Rm 218 1020470 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

37 3rd Fl - Rm 305 1020445 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

38 4th Fl - Kitchen
Bathroom 1020426 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

39 3rd Fl - Rm 319 1020457 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

40 4th Fl - Rm 412 1020380 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

41 3rd Fl - Rm 315 1020452 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed
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Panels/Initiating Devices

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

42 Basement - Custodian
Office 1020126 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

43 1st Fl - Men's Room 1020186 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

44 4th Fl - Women's
Restroom 1020451 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

45 2nd Fl - Rm 218 1020472 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

46 3rd Fl - Rm 322A 1020454 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

47 1st Fl - Gallery Rm 1020179 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

48 4th Fl - Men's Room 1020403 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

49 1st Fl - Gallery Entrance 1020194 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

50 Basement - Boiler
Room 1020133 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

51 3rd Fl - Rm 311 1020450 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

52 3rd Fl - Rm 306 1020436 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

53 1st Fl - Rm 111A 1020177 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

54 1st Fl - Library Room 1020165 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

55 4th Fl - Rm 402 1020385 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

56 RM — CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

57 1st Fl - General Office 1020161 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

58 5th Fl - Rm 513 1040161 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

59 4th Fl - Rm 404 1020389 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

60 2nd Fl - Rm 218 Stage 1020476 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

61 3rd Fl - Rm 302 1020439 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

62 5th Fl - Rm 509 1040149 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

63 5th Fl - Men s Restroom 1040165 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

64 RM — CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

65 5th Fl - Rm 520 1040164 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

66 5th Fl - Rm 517 1040159 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

67 5th Fl - Rm 511A 1040153 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

68 4th Fl - Rm 407 1020382 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

69 5th Fl - Rm 523A 1040157 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

70 5th Fl - Rm 512 1040157 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

71 1st Fl - Gallery Rm 1020182 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

72 1st Fl - Hall Room 106 1020171 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

73 3rd Fl - Rm 318 1020455 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

74 Basement - Custodian
Office 1020127 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

75 4th Fl - Rm 426 1020405 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

76 1st Fl - Boy's Restroom 1020157 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

77 4th Fl - Rm 403 1020387 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed
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Panels/Initiating Devices

CONNECTED DEVICES

# LOCATION ADDRESS DEVICE TYPE BARCODE INSPECTOR DATE OF TEST RESULT

78 2nd Fl - Telcom Rm 1020488 CO Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

79 4th Fl kitchen Area 1020256 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

80 4th Fl kitchen Area 1020255 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

81 BSMT Fl Boiler Room 1020132 Heat Detector — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

82 Roof Fl Stairs B 1020001 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

83 5th Fl Stairs B 1020002 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

84 5th Fl Stairs A 1020003 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

85 5th Fl Stairs C 1020004 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

86 5th Fl Roof Terrace 1020005 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

87 4th Fl Stairs A 1020260 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

88 4th Fl Stairs A 1020396 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

89 4th Fl Stairs B 1020416 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

90 4th Fl Stairs B 1020384 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

91 3rd Fl Stairs A 1020465 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

92 3rd Fl Stairs B 1020466 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

93 3rd Fl Stairs C 1020438 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

94 2nd Fl Stairs A 1020204 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

95 2nd Fl Stairs B 1020206 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

96 2nd Fl Stage Room 1020205 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

97 2nd Fl Stairs B 1020203 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

98 1St Fl Exit 124th Retail 1020209 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

99 1St Fl Exit 124th Retail 1020214 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

100 1St Fl Exit 124th Retail 1020213 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

101 1St Fl Exit 125
Northwest 1020211 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

102 1St Fl Stairs B 1020212 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

103 1St Fl Vestibule by FACP 1020168 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

104 BSMT Fl Stairs A 1020135 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

105 BSMT Fl Stairs B 1020396 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

106 BSMT Fl Stairs B 1020003 Pull Station — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

107 4th Fl Stairs B — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

108 3rd Fl Stairs B — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

109 2nd Fl Stairs B — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

110 1St Fl Corridor Exit
PASAGE — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

111 1St Fl Exit 125th
Corridor — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

112 1St Fl Exit 125th Gallery — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

113 1St Fl Exit 125th Retail — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed

114 1St Fl Exit 125th Stair B — Tamper Switch — Xavier Lopez 07/10/2019 Passed
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General Inspection Notes

1. Thank you for choosing Johnson controls as provider of your fire alarm inspection service, Conducted - annual inspection of the fire alarm system. Tested,
Cleaned and inspected all accesible devices, such as Smoke Detector, Duct Detectors, pull stations .heat detectors ,water flows, Tamper Switches also conducted
audio visual test ,and Elevator Recall, Upon arrival panel on AbNormal condition Panel restored to original condition upon departure: AbNormal
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CO Number:     

Certificate of Occupancy

This  certifies  that  the  premises  described  herein  conforms  substantially  to  the  approved  plans and specifications and to the

This document  or a copy shall be available for inspection at  the
building at all reasonable times.

requirements of all applicable laws, rules and regulations for the uses and occupancies specified.  No change of use or occupancy 
shall be made unless a new Certificate of Occupancy is issued.

Borough: ManhattanA.

Address: 35 WEST 124TH STREET

Building Identification Number (BIN): 1053473

Block Number: 01722

Lot Number(s): 51  

Building Type: New

Certificate Type: Final

Effective Date: 03/07/2014

B.

C.

D.

E.

Construction classification:

Building Occupancy Group classification:

Multiple Dwelling Law Classification:

No. of stories: Height in feet: No. of dwelling units:

Fire Protection Equipment:

Type and number of open spaces:

This Certificate is issued with the following legal limitations:

5 74

E

None

Standpipe system, Fire alarm system, Sprinkler system

0

None associated with this filing.

None

Borough Comments: None

For zoning lot metes & bounds, please see BISWeb.

This building is subject to this Building Code:  2008 Code

(2008 Code)

2-A (2008 Code)

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

DOCUMENT CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE
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CO Number:      

Certificate of Occupancy

              
       
Floor 
From To

          
Live load 
lbs per 
sq. ft.

 
Maximum
persons 
permitted

          
Dwelling or 
Rooming 
Units

                  
        
Zoning 
use group

Building 
Code 
occupancy 
group

                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                            
Description of use

Permissible Use and Occupancy
All Building Code occupancy group designations below are 2008 designations.

CEL 3A STORAGE ROOMS,UTILITY ROOMS,BOILER 
ROOMS

E

001 144 3A LECTURE HALL, CLASSROOMSA-3

001 9 3A LIBARARY, OFFICESB

001 201 6A, 6A, 6C RETAILM
M

001 100156 3A GALLERY,EXHIBITION HALLA-3001

002 527 3A GYM, AUDITORIUMA-3

002 100159 3A CLASSROOMS,OFFICESA-3002

003 100221 3A CLASSROOMS OFFICES LOCKERSE
B
A-3

003

004 146 3A CAFETERIAA-3

004 100211 3A KITCHEN, CLASSROOMS, OFFICESF-2
E

004

005 100 3A OUTDOOR CLASSROOM SPACE. NOTE: 
THERE SHALL BE NON-SIMULTANEOUS 
OCCUPANCY BETWEEN THE INDOOR AND 
OUTDOOR CLASSROOM SPACE.

E
B

005

RO
F

ELEVATOR MACHINE ROOM

END OF SECTION

Borough Commissioner Commissioner

END OF DOCUMENT   3/7/2014 12:29:49 PM



1	/	1

Entry	2	NYS	School	Report	Card	Link
Last	updated:	07/24/2019

1.	CHARTER	AUTHORIZER	(As	of
June	30th,	2019)

(For	technical	reasons,	please	re select
authorizer	name	from	the	drop	down
menu).

SUNY Authorized	Charter	School
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Robert Ollwerther, Chief Operating Officer, prepared this 2018-19 Accountability Progress Report 
on behalf of the school’s board of trustees: 

 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 

David Zwiebel Chair 

Daniel Pianko Treasurer 

Dr. Deborah Kenny Secretary 

Dr. Andrew August Member 

Judith Turner Hamerschlag Member 

Erica Newman Member 

Ronald Sernau, Esq. Member 

 

Deborah Kenny has served as the Executive Director since 2003.  
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The mission of Harlem Village Academy West is to prepare students of fine character to graduate 
from college and make a positive contribution to society. In order to accomplish this mission, we 
have established clear, measurable goals, which are outlined in this document. The school 
leadership and faculty continually strive to maintain our community’s focus on achieving these 
goals.  Harlem Village Academy West opened in the fall of 2003 with its first class of fifth graders. 
The school is divided into three academies that collectively currently serve approximately 838 
students in grades Kindergarten through twelfth. 

 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 

School 

Year 

Elementary Middle High 
Total 

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

2014-15 127 117 96 - - 71 71 59 65 62 58 49 33 808 

2015-16 126 117 91 77 - 70 63 69 52 44 62 55 47 873 

2016-17 115 104 110 75 67 70 56 58 61 37 42 55 49 899 

2017-18 104 107 92 97 63 61 66 47 54 43 37 39 54 864 

2018-19 110 97 95 77 83 60 55 61 37 48 40 35 38 838 

HIGH SCHOOL COHORTS 

ACCOUNTABILITY COHORT 

The state’s Accountability Cohort consists specifically of students who are in their fourth year of 
high school after entering the 9th grade.  For example, the 2015 state Accountability Cohort consists 
of students who entered the 9th grade anywhere sometime during the 2015-16 school year, were 
enrolled in the school on the state’s annual enrollment-determination day (i.e., BEDS day) in the 
2018-19 school year, and either remained in the school for the rest of the year or left for an 
acceptable reason.  (See New York State Education Department’s SIRS Manual for more details 
about cohort eligibility and acceptable exit reasons: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/irs/sirs/ht) 

The following table indicates the number of students in the Accountability Cohorts who are in their 
fourth year of high school and were enrolled at the school on BEDS Day in October and remained in 
the school until June 30th of that year. 

 

Fourth-Year High School Accountability Cohorts 

Fourth 
Year 

Cohort 

Year Entered 
9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Enrolled on BEDS Day in 
October of the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year  

Number  
Leaving 

During the 
School Year 

Number in 
Accountability 
Cohort as of 

June 30th 

2016-17 2013-14 2013 51 2 49 

2017-18 2014-15 2014 55 1 54 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 38 0 38 
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TOTAL COHORT FOR GRADUATION 

Students are also included in the Total Cohort for Graduation (referred to as the Graduation Cohort, 
Total Graduation Cohort, or Total Cohort interchangeably throughout this report) based on the year 
they first enter the 9th grade.   Students enrolled for at least one day in the school after entering the 
9th grade are part of the school’s Graduation Cohort.  The school may remove students from the 
Graduation Cohort if the school has discharged those students for an acceptable reason listed in the 
SIRS manual, including the following:  if they transfer to another public or private diploma-granting 
program with documentation, transfer to home schooling by a parent or guardian, transfer to 
another district or school, transfer by court order, leave the U.S., or are deceased. 

 

Fourth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fourth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of Students 
Graduated or 

Enrolled on June 
30th of  the Cohort’s 

Fourth Year 
(a) 

 Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason  
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2016-17 2013-14 2013 48 1 49 

2017-18 2014-15 2014 54 0 54 

2018-19 2015-16 2015 38 0 38 

 

Fifth Year Total Cohort for Graduation 

Fifth 
Year  

Cohort 

Year 
Entered 

9th Grade 
Anywhere 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number of 
Students 

Graduated or 
Enrolled on June 

30th of the Cohort’s 
Fifth Year  

(a) 

Number of Students No Longer 
at the School Who Had Been 
Enrolled for at Least One Day 

Prior to Leaving the School and 
Who Were Not Discharged for 

an Acceptable Reason   
(b) 

Total 
Graduation 

Cohort 
(a) + (b) 

2016-17 2012-13 2012 0 0 0 

2017-18 2013-14 2013 0 1 1 

2018-19 2014-15 2014 0 1 1 
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GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

GOAL 1: HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION 

Students will graduate from high school. 

 

Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will 
earn at least ten credits (if 44 needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year. 

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of the high school cohort and 
examines students’ progress toward graduation based on annual credit accumulation.  The measure 
requires that, based on the school’s promotion requirements, 75 percent of the first and second 
year high school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn the required number of credits. 

In order to graduate, students must successfully complete at least 22 credits as listed below: 

4 English credits 3 Math credits 1 Art credit 

4 Social Studies credits 1 World Language credit 0.5 Health Education credits 

3 Science credits 2 Physical Education credits 3.5 Elective credits 

 
Harlem Village Academy West strongly encourages students to enroll in English, History, Math, and 
Science courses for all four years of high school, and in World Language courses for three years. 
Students are considered to be promoted to the next grade level as long as they remain on track to 
graduate from high school in four years. 

10th: In order to be considered a sophomore, students must successfully complete at least 5 credits. 
11th: In order to be considered a junior, students must successfully complete at least 10 credits. 
12th: In order to be considered a senior, students must successfully complete at least 15 credits. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below displays the percent of students in each Accountability Cohort who remain on track 
to graduate within four years. 

 
Percent of Students in First and Second Year Cohorts  

Earning the Required Number of Credits in 2018-19 

Cohort 
Designation 

Number in Cohort 
during 2018-19 

Percent 
promoted  

2017 40 98% 

2018 46 98% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded this measure. 
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Goal 1: Leading Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the second year high school Total Graduation Cohort will score 
at or above proficient on at least three different New York State Regents exams required for 
graduation.   

METHOD 

This measure serves as a leading indicator of the performance of high school cohorts and examines 
their progress towards graduation based on Regents exam passage.  The measure requires that 75 
percent of students in each Graduation Cohort have passed at least three Regents exams by their 
second year in the cohort.  In August of 2019, the 2017 cohort will have completed its second year. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of each cohort that passed three Regents exams by their second 
year in the cohort. 

 

Percent of Students in their Second Year Passing Three Regents Exams by Cohort 

Cohort 
Designation 

 
School Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing Three 

Regents  

2015 2016-17 40 93% 

2016 2017-18 36 69% 

2017 2018-19 40 83% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure for the 2015 cohort and exceeded the 
measure for the 2017 cohort, but did not meet the measure for the 2016 cohort. 

 

Goal 1: Absolute Measures 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school Total Graduation Cohort and 95 
percent of students in the fifth year high school Total Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

METHOD 

This measure examines students in two high school Graduation Cohorts:  those who entered the 9th 
grade as members of the 2015 cohort and graduated four years later and those who entered as 
members of the 2014 cohort and graduated five years later.  These data reflect August graduation 
rates.  At a minimum, these students have passed five Regents exams required for high school 
graduation in ELA, mathematics, science, U.S. History, and Global History or met the requirements 
for the 4+1 pathway to graduation.1    

                                                        
1 The state’s guidance for the 4+1 graduation pathway can be found here: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-pathways/. 
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The school’s graduation requirements appear in this document below the graduation goal’s first 
measure pertaining to annual grade-by-grade promotion or credit accumulation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The tables below show the four-year and five-year graduation rates for each cohort. 

 

Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who have Graduated After Four Years 

Cohort 
Designation 

School  
Year 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent 
Graduating 

2013 2016-17 49 97.9% 

2014 2017-18 54 100% 

2015 2018-19 38 100% 
 

Percent of Students in Total Graduation Cohort Who Have Graduated After Five Years 

Cohort 
Designation 

School 
Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

2012 2016-17 48 100% 

2013 2017-18 49 97.9% 

2014 2018-19 54 100% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Graduation Cohort graduating after the 
completion of their fourth year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the graduation rate of students completing their fourth year in the charter 
school’s Total Graduation Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district 
of comparison.2  Given that students may take Regents exams through the summer of their fourth 
year, district results for the current year are generally not available at this time.  As such, for 
purposes of this report schools should include the district’s 2017-18 results as a temporary 
placeholder for the district’s 2018-19 results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The tables below show the four-year graduation rates for each cohort for Harlem Village Academy 
West and Community School District 5. 

                                                        
2 Schools can retrieve district level graduation rates from the SED’s Information and Reporting Services office.  News releases 

and an Excel workbook containing these data are available from the IRS Data Release webpage. 
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Percent of Students in the Total Graduation Cohort who  
Graduate in Four Years Compared to the District  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
School Year 

Charter School School  District 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Graduating  

2013 2016-17 49 97.9% 1000 69.5% 

2014 2017-18 54 100% 945 67.6% 

2015 2018-19 38 100% N/A N/A 

 

Harlem Village Academy West met the measure for the 2013 and 2014 cohorts. School district 
information for the 2015 cohort is not available at this time. 

 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort pursuing an alternative graduation 
pathway (commonly referred to as the 4+1 pathway) will achieve a Regents equivalency score and 
pass an approved pathway assessment required for graduation by the end of their fourth year in 
the cohort. 

METHOD 

The New York State Board of Regents approved regulations establishing alternative pathways to 
graduation for all students.  Students may replace one of the required Social Studies Regents exams 
with an approved alternative assessment.  For more information about requirements and approved 
assessments refer to the NYSED resource online: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/ciai/multiple-
pathways/.  The school will document the names of the alternative assessments administered and 
success rate for students in the templates bellow. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students demonstrating success on alternative graduation 
pathway assessments. 

 

Percentage of the 2015 Graduation Cohort Pathway Students Demonstrating Success by Exam Type  

 

Exam 

Number of 
Graduation Cohort 
Members Tested 

(a) 

Number Passing or 
Achieving Regents 

Equivalency 

(b) 

 

Percentage Passing 

=[(b)/(a)]*100 

Regents Geometry 
Common Core Exam 

2 2 100% 

Overall 2 2 100% 
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Pathway Exam Passing Rate 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 

Cohort Designation 
 

School Year 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Passing a Pathway 

Exam 

2013 2016-17 1 100% 

2014 2017-18 2 100% 

2015 2018-19 2 100% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved five of the high school graduation goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in first and second year high 
school Total Graduation Cohorts will earn at least ten credits (if 44 
needed for graduation) or five credits (if 22 needed for graduation) 
each year.    

Exceeded 

Leading 
Indicator 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will score at least 65 on at least three different 
New York State Regents exams required for graduation by the 
completion of their second year in the cohort.   

Exceeded for the 
2015 and 2017 

cohorts. Did not 
meet for the 2016 

cohort 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the fourth year high school 
Total Graduation Cohort will graduate.   

Exceeded 

Absolute 
Each year, 95 percent of students in the fifth year high school Total 
Graduation Cohort will graduate. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Graduation Cohort graduating after the completion of their fourth 
year will exceed that of the Total Graduation Cohort from the school 
district of comparison. 

Exceeded 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Total Cohort 
pursuing an alternative graduation pathway will achieve a Regents 
equivalency score and pass an approved pathway assessment 
required for graduation by the end of their fourth year. 

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

 GOAL 2: COLLEGE PREPARATION 

Students will gain admission to college. 

 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate their preparation for college by at 
least one or some combination of the following indicators: 

• Passing an Advanced Placement (“AP”) exam with a score of 3 or higher; 

• Earning a score of 4 or higher on an International Baccalaureate (“IB”) exam; 

• Passing a College Level Examination Program (“CLEP”) exam; 

• Passing a college level course offered at a college or university or through a school 
partnership with a college or university; 

• Achieving the college and career readiness benchmark on the SAT; or, 

• Earning a Regents diploma with advanced designation. 

METHOD 

Schools use any method listed here, or any combination thereof, to demonstrate that at least 75 
percent of graduates are prepared to engage in rigorous college level coursework.  The school 
should select only those methods listed here that it uses to demonstrate the college readiness of its 
students and eliminate those that it will not.  For instance, high schools that do not deliver an IB 
Program as part of their high school design do not report on the IB option.  The school reports on 
the number of students who attempted to achieve each indicator, the number who succeeded, and 
the corresponding percentage.  Additionally, the school should report on the overall number of 
students who graduated after four years, the number of those graduates who achieved any of the 
relevant measures, and the overall percentage achieving the measure.  
 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of graduating students demonstrating preparation for college. 
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Percentage of the 2015 Total Cohort Graduates Demonstrating College Preparation by Indicator  

 

Indicator 

Number of 
Graduates who 
Attempted the 

Indicator 

 

Number who Achieved 
Indicator 

 

Percentage of Graduates 
who Achieved Indicator 

Earning a score of 4 or 
higher on an 
International 

Baccalaureate (“IB”) 
exam 

 

17 

 

11 

 

64.7% 

Achieving the college and 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT – 
Evidence-Based Reading 

and Writing 

 

31 

 

23 

 

74.19% 

Achieving the college and 
career readiness 

benchmark on the SAT – 
Math 

 

31 

 

9 

 

29.03% 

 

Overall 

 

383 

 

19 

 

50% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index (“CCCRI”) for the school’s Total Cohort will 
exceed the Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA accountability system. 

METHOD 

The state’s finalized ESSA plan includes a College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index that measures 
the rate of completion among the Total Cohort of a variety of indicators of readiness for the next 
step after high school.  Indicators that are more rigorous and that are therefore more difficult to 
attain receive greater weight in the new CCCRI (e.g., attaining an Advanced Regents diploma and a 
score of 4 or higher on an IB exam).  Conversely, some less rigorous indicators that were not 
included in the College and Career Readiness Index under the state’s NCLB accountability system 
are included in the CCCRI (e.g., completion of a high school equivalency program).4 

To achieve this measure, the school must have a CCCRI value that equals or exceeds the 2018-19 
CCCRI MIP of 130 for all students.  The CCCRI is calculated by multiplying the number of students in 

                                                        
3 This number should match the number of graduates reported under the high school graduation goal. 

4 For more detail about the weighting of college readiness methods for calculation of the CCCRI, see pages 64-65 of 
the state’s finalized ESSA plan here. 
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the cohort demonstrating college, career, and civic readiness by the weighting for the method by 
which the student demonstrated college, career, and civic readiness, divided by the number of 
students in the Total Cohort.  The highest possible CCCRI is 200.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index for the school’s Total Cohort. 

 

CCCRI Performance by Cohort Year  

Graduation Year 
 

Cohort 
Number of 
Students in 

Cohort 

 
MIP 

 
School CCCRI 

2016-17 2013 N/A N/A N/A 

2017-18 2014 54 128 154.6 

2018-19 2015 38 130 136.8 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

 

Goal 2: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed that of the district of comparison’s 
Total Cohort. 

METHOD 

The school compares the CCCRI of students from the fourth year in the charter school Total Cohort 
to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the comparison of the CCCRI for students from the fourth year in the charter 
school’s Total Cohort and Community School District 5. 

  

CCRI of Fourth-Year Total Cohort by Charter School and School District 

Cohort Charter School School District 

2013 N/A N/A 

2014 154.6 95.1 

2015 136.8 95.1 

 

The College, Career, and Civic Readiness Index for Community School District 5 was not available for 
2018-19 at the time this report was completed. When compared to the CCCRI for 2017-18, Harlem 
Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate into a college or university in the year 
after graduation. 

METHOD 

The ultimate measure of whether a college prep high school has lived up to its mission is whether 
students actually enroll and succeed in college.  Schools track and report the percentage of fourth-
year Total Cohort graduates who matriculate into a two or four-year college program in the school 
year following graduation. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of graduates enrolling in a college or university for each cohort 
as determined by data from the National Student Clearinghouse and student communication. 

 

Matriculation Rate of Graduates by Year 

Cohort 

 
 

Graduation Year 

Number of 
Graduates 

 
(a) 

Number Enrolled 
in 2 or 4-year 

Program in 
Following Year 

(b) 

Matriculation 
Rate 

 
=[(b)/(a)]*100 

2013 2016-17 49 47 95.9% 

2014 2017-18 54 49 90.7% 

2015 2018-19 38 37 97.4% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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SUMMARY OF THE COLLEGE PREPARATION GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved three of the four college preparation goals. 

 

Type Measure (Accountability Plan from 2012-13 or later) Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will demonstrate 
their preparation for college by one or more possible 
indicators of college readiness.  

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, the CCCRI for the school’s Total Cohort will exceed 
that year’s state MIP set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 
Each year, the school’s CCCRI for the Total Cohort will exceed 
that of the district’s Total Cohort. 

Exceeded 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of graduating students will matriculate 
into a college or university in the year after graduation. 

Exceeded 

 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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GOAL 3: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 3: English Language Arts 

Students will meet or exceed state performance standards for mastery of skills and content 
knowledge in the area of English language arts. Students will also demonstrate proficiency in 
advanced skills in the area of English language arts necessary for admission into and success in 
college. 

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination for grades 3-8.   

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts (“ELA”) 
assessment to students in 3rd  through 8th grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw score has been 
converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.   

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration.   The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year (defined as 
enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year).   

 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

  Grade 
Total 

Tested 
Not Tested5 Total 

Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 73 0 0 0 2 75 

4 81 0 0 0 2 83 

5 52 0 0 0 5 57 

6 54 0 0 0 1 55 

7 58 0 0 0 1 59 

8 37 0 0 0 1 38 

All 355 0 0 0 12 367 

 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State English Language Arts exam. 

 

                                                        
5 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 
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Performance on 2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 

By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grades 

All Students   
Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

3 69.9% 73 69.9% 73 

4 60.5% 81 60.5% 81 

5 53.8% 52 53.8% 52 

6 77.8% 54 77.8% 54 

7 34.5% 58 35.1% 57 

8 43.2% 37 43.2% 37 

All  58.0% 355 58.2% 354 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results of the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 State English Language 
Arts exam. There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of students enrolled in at least their 
second year achieving proficiency. 

 

ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 78.9% 71 59.6% 94 69.9% 73 

4 61.9% 63 71.2% 59 60.5% 81 

5 - - 60.0% 60 53.8% 52 

6 14.3% 56 33.3% 66 77.8% 54 

7 13.8% 58 38.3% 47 35.1% 57 

8 27.4% 62 50.9% 53 43.2% 37 

All 41.2% 311 53.0% 379 58.2% 354 

*The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested. 

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language arts exam 
will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 
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METHOD 

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have scored at the partially 
proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4).  The percentage of 
students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met 
the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested 
students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP 
for all students of 105.  The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined 
scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half 
times the percent of students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the calculation of the school’s 2018-19 English language arts Performance 
Index. 

 

English Language Arts 2018-19 Performance Index 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Performance Level  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

355 10.4% 31.5% 38.3% 19.7%  

      
  PI = 31.5% + 38.3% + 19.7% = 89.6%  
        38.3% + 19.7% = 58.0%  
         + (.5)*19.7% = 9.9%  
           PI 

 
= 
 

157.5%  

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in the 
public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results for each grade in which 
the school had tested students in at least their second year at the school and the total result for all 
students at the corresponding grades in the school district.6 

                                                        
6 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 20 of 60 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State English Language Arts exam for Harlem 
Village Academy West and Community School District 5. 

 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam  
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at  or Above Proficiency 

Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 69.9% 73 36.0% 732 

4 60.5% 81 30.0% 793 

5 53.8% 52 25.0% 783 

6 77.8% 54 38.0% 710 

7 35.1% 57 25.0% 768 

8 43.2% 37 33.0% 787 

All 58.2% 354 31.0% 4573 

 

Harlem Village Academy West met the measure for grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and overall average. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results of the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 State English Language 
Arts exam for Harlem Village Academy West and Community School District 5. There is a year-to-
year increase in the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year achieving 
proficiency. 

 

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District 

by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring at or 
Above Proficiency Compared to District Students  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School  

District 
Charter 
School  

District  
Charter 
School  

District  

3 78.9% 23.0% 59.6% 32.0% 69.9% 36.0% 

4 61.9% 24.0% 71.2% 29.0% 60.5% 30.0% 

5 - 21.0% 60.0% 22.0% 53.8% 25.0% 

6 14.3% 18.0% 33.3% 32.0% 77.8% 38.0% 

7 13.8% 26.0% 38.3% 25.0% 35.1% 25.0% 

8 27.4% 32.0% 50.9% 34.0% 43.2% 33.0% 

All 41.2% 24.1% 53.0% 28.9% 58.2% 31.0% 
*The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested. 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English language 

arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful 
degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 

The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance analysis, 
which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public schools 
statewide.  The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State.   The Institute compares the 
school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar 
concentration of economically disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual 
and predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a 
meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure.   

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2017-18 State English 
language arts exam. 

 

2017-18 English Language Arts Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect  
Size 

Actual Predicted 

3 79.0 94 59.6 42.8 16.8 0.93 

4 78.6 59 71.2 40.0 31.2 1.61 

5 77.6 60 60.0 29.2 30.8 1.90 

6 95.7 66 33.3 32.1 1.2 0.08 

7 85.7 47 38.3 28.3 10.0 0.59 

8 92.9 53 50.9 35.2 15.7 0.88 

All 84.4 379 53.0 35.5 17.6 0.99 

 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-
18 state English language arts exam. 

 

English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year 

Grades 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Actual Predicted 
Effect 
Size 

2015-16 3rd, 5th-8th 88.3 320 22.3 23.5 -0.13 

2016-17 3rd-8th 86.5 380 37.4 27.1 0.55 

2017-18 3rd-8th 84.4 379 53.0 35.5 0.99 

 
 
 

Goal 3: Growth Measure7  

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.   

 

METHOD 

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score from 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade.  
Students with the same 2016-17 score are ranked by their 2017-18 score and assigned a percentile 
based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile).  Students’ growth 
percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a 
school to perform above the target for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater 
than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.8   

 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village 
Academy West for 2017-18. 

 

                                                        
7 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 

8 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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2017-18 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 

4 42.0 50.0 

5 52.0 50.0 

6 60.0 50.0 

7 70.0 50.0 

8 73.5 50.0 

All 59.0 50.0 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village 
Academy West for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18. 

 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 

4 - 45.5 42.0 50.0 

5 35.5 37.0 52.0 50.0 

6 43.0 53.0 60.0 50.0 

7 46.5 55.5 70.0 50.0 

8 52.5 58.5 73.5 50.0 

All 44.0 49.5 59.0 50.0 
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SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved four of the English Language Arts goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State English 
language arts exam for grades 3-8.  

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state English 
language arts exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison.  

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a 
regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Exceeded 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in English language arts for all tested students in grades 
4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2017-18 results.)  

Exceeded 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents English exam that students must pass to graduate.  The school 
scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100.  The State Education Department currently defines the 
college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 (meeting 
Common Core expectations) on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core).  This 
measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the 
Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) for each accountability cohort. 

 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on Regents English Common Core Exam 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort9  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth  

Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 on Common Core 

ELA Exam 

2013 2016-17 49 63.3% 

2014 2017-18 54 63.0% 

2015 2018-19 38 50.0% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent scoring Performance 
Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core). 

 

 

 

                                                        
9 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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English Language Arts Performance Index (PI)  

For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

38 2.6% 47.4% 13.2% 36.8%  

      
  PI = 47.4% + 13.2% + 36.8% = 97.4%  
        13.2% + 36.8% = 50.0%  
         + (.5)*36.8% = 18.4%  
           PI = 165.8%  

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core 
expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.    In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 4 or 
higher on the English Regents for Harlem Village Academy West compared to Community School 
District 5. 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on English Regents   

of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 63.3% 49 54.0% 1000 

2014 2017-18 63.0% 54 55.0% 945 

2015 2018-19 50.0% 38 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When 
compared to the 2014 average, Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core) will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common 
Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65).  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 3 or 
higher on the English Regents for Harlem Village Academy West compared to Community School 
District 5. 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on English Regents   

of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 
3 or Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Level 
3 or Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 97.9% 49 79.1% 1000 

2014 2017-18 98.1% 54 75.1% 945 

2015 2018-19 97.4% 38 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When 
compared to the 2014 average, Harlem Village Academy West met the measure. 

 

Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents English of students in the fourth year of their 
high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school district 
of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
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comparison.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the Regents English Performance Index for Harlem Village Academy West 
and Community School District 5 for each cohort. 

 

English Regents Performance Index (PI)12   

of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Charter School School District 

PI 
Cohort 

Size 
PI 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 167.3 49 164.0 1000 

2014 2017-18 182.4 54 181.5 945 

2015 2018-19 165.8 48 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. 

 

 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will meet the college and 
career readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common 
Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 4 on the Regents exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
Language Arts exam. 

 

 

 

                                                        
12 For an explanation of the procedure to calculate the school’s PI, see page 28. 
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Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on Common Core exam among Students  

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 13  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core exam 

2013 2016-17 38 52.6% 

2014 2017-18 42 52.4% 

2015 2018-19 38 41.9% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West met the measure in 2013 and 2014, but did not meet the measure in 
2015. 

 

Goal 3: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade English language arts exam will at least partially meet 
Common Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its English language arts program by enabling 
students who were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to meet the English 
requirement for graduation.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 3 on the Regents exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) for students who were not proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
Language Arts exam. 

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on Common Core exam among Students  

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 14  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth  

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 3 
on Regents English Exam 

2013 2016-17 38 97.4% 

2014 2017-18 42 97.6% 

2015 2018-19 38 96.8% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure.  

                                                        
13 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

14 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 
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SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL  

Harlem Village Academy West achieved three of the High School English Language Arts goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) on the Regents English exam of 
students completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet 
the state Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English 
Language Arts (Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students from the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on the Regents Exam in English Language Arts 
(Common Core) will exceed the percentage of comparable students in the 
district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents English of students in the 
fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison.  (Using 2017-18 
school district results.) 

Did not meet 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade English 
language arts exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations 
(currently scoring at least Performance Level 3 on the Regents Exam in 
English Language Arts (Common Core)) by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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GOAL 4: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 4: Mathematics 

Students will meet or exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the 
area of mathematics. Students will demonstrate further proficiency in advanced skills in 
mathematics necessary for admission into and success in college. 

 

Goal 4:  Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at 
proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8.  

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to students 
in 3rd through 8th grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw score has been converted to a grade-
specific scaled score and a performance level.   

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration.   The table 
indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a detailed 
breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes all students 
according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second year.  

  

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Grade 
Total 

Tested 
Not Tested15 Total 

Enrolled IEP ELL Absent Refused 

3 73 0 0 0 2 75 

4 81 0 0 0 2 83 

5 52 0 0 0 5 57 

6 55 0 0 0 0 55 

7 57 0 0 0 2 59 

8 38 0 0 0 0 38 

All 356 0 0 0 11 367 

 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State Mathematics exam. 

 

 

                                                        
15 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English Language 
Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 34 of 60 

Performance on 2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

 

Grades 

All Students   
Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested  

3 76.7% 73 76.7% 73 

4 79.0% 81 79.0% 81 

5 96.2% 52 96.2% 52 

6 96.4% 55 96.4% 55 

7 36.8% 57 37.5% 56 

8 55.3% 38 55.3% 38 

All  74.4% 356 74.6% 355 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure in 3rd-6th grade, but did not meet it in 7th and 
8th grade. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results of the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 State Mathematics exam. 
There is a year-to-year increase in the percent of students enrolled in at least their second year 
achieving proficiency. 

 

Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 98.6% 70 86.3% 95 76.7% 73 

4 90.6% 64 96.6% 59 79.0% 81 

5 - - 91.7% 60 96.2% 52 

6 12.5% 56 39.4% 66 96.4% 55 

7 19.3% 57 27.7% 47 37.5% 56 

8 22.4% 58 35.8% 53 55.3% 38 

All 51.6% 306 66.3% 380 74.6% 355 
*The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested. 

 

Goal 4:  Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the state mathematics exam will 
meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 
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METHOD 

In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute proportion 
of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the partially proficient, 
or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4).  The percentage of students at 
each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine if the school has met the MIP set 
each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested students 
must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP for all students of 
107.  The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, 
plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of 
students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the calculation of the school’s 2018-19 mathematics Performance Index. 

 

Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI)  

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Performance Level  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

356 8.7% 16.9% 33.1% 41.3%  

      
  PI = 16.9% + 33.1% + 41.3% = 91.3%  
        33.1% + 

+ 
41.3% 

(.5)*41.3% 
= 
= 

74.4% 
20.6% 

 

           PI = 186.4%  

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

Goal 4:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year to that 
of all tested students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the 
results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the 
school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.16 

                                                        
16 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing grade level 
ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of the data on its News 
Release webpage. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State mathematics exam for Harlem Village 
Academy West and Community School District 5. 

 

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam  
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level  

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 

Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

3 76.7% 73 33.0% 745 

4 79.0% 81 28.0% 798 

5 96.2% 52 25.0% 797 

6 96.4% 55 31.0% 719 

7 37.5% 56 20.0% 779 

8 55.3% 38 12.0% 590 

All 74.6% 355 24.8% 4428 

 

Harlem Village Academy West met the measure for grades 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and overall average. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results of the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 State mathematics exam 
for Harlem Village Academy West and Community School District 5. is a year-to-year increase in the 
percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year achieving proficiency. 

 

Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District  
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are at 
Proficiency Compared to Local District Students  

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School  

District  
Charter 
School  

District  
Charter 
School  

District  

3 98.6% 25.0% 86.3% 33.0% 76.7% 33.0% 

4 90.6% 18.0% 96.6% 22.0% 79.0% 28.0% 

5 - 21.0% 91.7% 23.0% 96.2% 25.0% 

6 12.5% 17.0% 39.4% 21.0% 96.4% 31.0% 

7 19.3% 15.0% 27.7% 19.0% 37.5% 20.0% 

8 22.4% 4.0% 35.8% 11.0% 55.3% 12.0% 

All 51.6% 17.3% 66.3% 21.9% 74.6% 24.8% 
*The data have been omitted in cases where there were less than 10 students tested. 
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Goal 4:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state mathematics exam 

by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) 
according to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 

The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide.  The Institute uses a 
regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State.   The Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the 
predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of economically 
disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, 
relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size.  
An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the 
requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the demands of the 
data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the 
most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2017-18 state mathematics 
exam. 

 

2017-18 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between Actual 
and Predicted 

Effect  
Size 

Actual Predicted 

3 79.0 95 86.3 45.7 40.6 1.97 

4 78.6 59 96.6 39.4 57.3 2.73 

5 77.6 60 91.7 34.4 57.2 3.10 

6 95.7 66 39.4 24.5 14.9 0.90 

7 85.7 47 27.7 26.3 1.3 0.06 

8 92.9 53 35.8 20.3 15.5 0.81 

All 84.4 380 66.3 33.3 33.0 1.69 

 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Higher than expected to a large degree 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the Comparative Performance Analysis for the 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-
18 state mathematics exam. 

 

Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 
 

School 
Year 

Grades 
Percent 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested 

Actual Predicted 
Effect 
Size 

2015-16 3rd, 5th-8th 88.3 321 45.2 22.2 1.21 

2016-17 3rd-8th 86.5 375 47.3 25.0 1.15 

2017-18 3rd-8th 84.4 380 66.3 33.3 1.69 

 

 

Goal 4: Growth Measure17  

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile in 
mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50.   

METHOD 

This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one year to 
the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the same score in 
the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state exam in 2017-18 and also 
have a state exam score in 2016-17 including students who were retained in the same grade.  
Students with the same 2016-17 scores are ranked by their 2017-18 scores and assigned a 
percentile based on their relative growth in performance (student growth percentile).  Students’ 
growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order 
for a school to meet the measure, the school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile 
above the target of 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data available.18   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village 
Academy West for 2017-18. 

 

 

                                                        
17 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 

18 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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2017-18 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

School Target 

4 48.0 50.0 

5 48.5 50.0 

6 72.5 50.0 

7 68.5 50.0 

8 65.5 50.0 

All 60.0 50.0 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the unadjusted mean growth percentiles by grade level for Harlem Village 
Academy West for 2015-16, 2016-17, and 2017-18. 

 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 
Mean Growth Percentile 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 Target 

4 - 34.0 48.0 50.0 

5 43.5 62.5 48.5 50.0 

6 60.5 41.0 72.5 50.0 

7 57.0 71.0 68.5 50.0 

8 57.5 50.0 65.5 50.0 

All 54.5 51.5 60.0 50.0 
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SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved four of the mathematics goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York State 
mathematics exam for grades 3-8.  

Did not meet 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language arts 
exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least 
their second year and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics 
exam will be greater than that of students in the same tested grades in the 
school district of comparison.  

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the 
state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing 
higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according to a regression 
analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged students among all 
public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 results.) 

Exceeded 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean unadjusted 
growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will 
be above the target of 50. (Using the 2017-18 results.)   

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS 

 

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will exceed Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics 
exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school administered the Regents mathematics exam(s) that students must pass to graduate.  
The school scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100.  The State Education Department currently 
defines the college and career readiness standard as scoring at or above Performance Level 4 
(meeting Common Core expectations) on any Regents Common Core mathematics exams.  This 
measure examines the percent of the Accountability Cohort that achieved at least Performance 
Level 4 by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students scoring at or above Performance Level 4 on a 
Regents mathematics exam for each accountability cohort. 

 

Percent Scoring at Least Level 4 on a Regents Mathematics Common Core Exam 

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort19  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Number 
in 

Cohort 

Percent Scoring at Least 
Level 4 

2013 2016-17 49 40.8% 

2014 2017-18 54 3.7% 

2015 2018-19 38 38.9% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the interim performance of cohorts as the percent of students scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam. 

 

 

 

                                                        
19 Based on the highest score for each student on a mathematics Regents exam 
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For the 2015 High School Accountability Cohort 

Number in 
Cohort  

Percent of Students at Each Accountability Level  

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4  

38 2.6% 42.1% 42.1% 13.2%  

      
  PI = 42.1% + 42.1% + 13.2% = 97.4%  
        42.1% + 13.2% = 55.3%  
         + (.5)*13.2% = 6.6%  
           PI = 159.2%  

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort meeting or exceeding Common 
Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of comparable 
students in the district meeting or exceeding Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to meet or exceed Common Core expectations, a student 
must achieve Performance Level 4 or 5.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 4 or 
higher on a Regents mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy West compared to Community 
School District 5. 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 4 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents   

of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 4 or 5 
Number in 

Cohort 
Percent Level 4 or 5 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 40.8% 49 23.0% 1000 

2014 2017-18 3.7% 54 21.0% 945 

2015 2018-19 38.9% 38 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When 
compared to the 2014 average, Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exams will exceed the percentage of 
comparable students in the district at least partially meeting Common Core expectations. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school Total 
Cohort to that of the respective Total Cohort of students in the school district of comparison.  Due 
to availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and not the 
Accountability Cohort results.  In order to at least partially meet Common Core expectations, a 
student would need to pass the exam and score at Performance Level 3 or higher (i.e. scoring at 
least 65).Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth year, 
the school presents most recently available school district results. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort achieving Performance Level 3 or 
higher on a Regents mathematics exam for Harlem Village Academy West compared to Community 
School District 5. 

 

Percent Achieving Performance Level 3 or Higher on a Mathematics Regents   

of Fourth-Year Total Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 

 
 

Fourth  
Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent Level 3 or 
Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Level 3 or 
Higher 

Number in 
Cohort 

2013 2016-17 100.0% 49 78.7% 1000 

2014 2017-18 100.0% 54 72.3% 945 

2015 2018-19 97.4% 38 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When 
compared to the 2014 average, Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

Goal 4: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the Performance Index (“PI”) in Regents mathematics of students in the fourth year of 
their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of comparable students from the school 
district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school 
Accountability Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of 
comparison.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the summer of their fourth 
year, the school presents most recently available school district results. 
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RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the Regents mathematics Performance Index for Harlem Village Academy 
West and Community School District 5 for each cohort. 

 

Mathematics Regents Performance Index (PI)   

of Fourth-Year Accountability Cohorts by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 
 

Fourth 
Year  

Charter School School District 

PI 
Cohort 

Size 
PI 

Cohort 
Size 

2013 2016-17 140.8 49 169.0 1000 

2014 2017-18 114.8 54 165.5 945 

2015 2018-19 159.2 38 N/A N/A 

 

District results for the 2015 cohort were not available at the time this report was completed. When 
compared to the 2014 average, Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will meet the college and career 
readiness standard (currently scoring at Performance Level 4 and fully meeting Common Core 
expectations on a Regents mathematics exam) by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to grow to meeting the mathematics 
requirement for the college and career readiness standard.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam for students 
who were not proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam. 
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Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 4 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students  

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 22  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 4 
on Common Core Exam 

2013 2016-17 35 31.4% 

2014 2017-18 40 0.0% 

2015 2018-19 23 30.4% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

Goal 4: Growth Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort who did not score 
proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam will at least partially meet Common 
Core expectations (currently scoring at Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by 
the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

The school demonstrates the effectiveness of its mathematics program by enabling students who 
were not meeting proficiency standards in the eighth grade to move to meeting the English 
requirement for graduation.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the passing rate with a Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam for students 
who were not proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics exam. 

 

Percent Achieving at Least Performance Level 3 on a Mathematics Regents Exam among Students  

Who Were Not Proficient in the 8th Grade by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort 23  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent Achieving Level 3  

2013 2016-17 35 100.0% 

2014 2017-18 40 97.5% 

2015 2018-19 23 95.7% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

  

                                                        
22 Based on the highest score for each student on the English Regents exam 

23 Based on the highest score for each student on the mathematics Regents exam 
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SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL MATHEMATICS GOAL 24 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved five of the high school mathematics goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 65 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at or 
above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Absolute 
 

Each year, 80 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

Absolute 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in mathematics of students 
completing their fourth year in the Accountability Cohort will meet the state 
Measure of Interim Progress (MIP) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will 
exceed the percentage of comparable students from the district meeting or 
exceeding Common Core expectations. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percentage of students in the Total Cohort partially meeting 
Common Core expectations on a Regents mathematics exam will exceed the 
percentage of comparable students in the district at least partially meeting 
Common Core expectations. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the Performance Index (PI) in Regents mathematics of students in 
the fourth year of their high school Accountability Cohort will exceed that of 
comparable students from the school district of comparison.  (Using 2016-17 
school district results.) 

Did not meet 

Growth 

Each year, 50 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will meet or exceed Common Core expectations (currently scoring at 
or above Performance Level 4 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Did not meet 

Growth 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort 
who did not score proficient on their New York State 8th grade mathematics 
exam will at least partially meet Common Core expectations (currently 
scoring at least Performance Level 3 on a Regents mathematics exam) by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 

                                                        
24 If the school includes a middle school component, add these measures to the subject area goal for the younger grades. 
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GOAL 5: SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Science 

Students will meet and exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the 
area of science. 

 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will perform at or 
above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 

The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to students in 4th 
and 8th grade in spring 2019.  The school converted each student’s raw score to a performance level 
and a grade-specific scaled score.  The criterion for success on this measure requires students 
enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State science exam. 

 

Charter School Performance on 2018-19 State Science Exam 

By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency of Students in At 
Least 2nd Year 

Percent Proficient Number Tested 

4 83.1% 83 

8 31.6% 38 

All 66.9% 121 

 

Harlem Village Academy West did not meet the measure. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results on the New York State science exam for 2016-17, 2017-18, and 
2018-19. 
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Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year at 
Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 93.8% 64 89.7% 58 83.1% 83 

8 70.0% 60 64.8% 54 31.6% 38 

All 82.3% 124 77.7% 112 66.9% 121 

 

Goal 5: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and performing at 
proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students in the same tested 
grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested students in 
the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results for each grade in 
which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the results for the respective 
grades in the school district of comparison.  Given the timing of the state’s release of district 
science data, the 2018-19 comparative data may not yet be available.  If not, schools should report 
comparison to the district’s 2017-18 data. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the results of the 2018-19 State science exam for Harlem Village Academy 
West. 

 

2018-19 State Science Exam  

Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 
 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 

Charter School Students 
In At Least 2nd Year 

All District Students25 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 83.1% 83 74.0% 801 

8 31.6% 38 28.5% 648 

All 66.9% 121 53.7% 1449 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

                                                        
25 This table uses the prior year’s results as 2018-19 district science scores are not yet available. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the results of the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 State science exam for 
Harlem Village Academy West and Community School District 5. 

 

Science Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Charter School Students at Proficiency and Enrolled in At Least their 
Second Year Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School  

District  
Charter 
School  

District  
Charter 
School  

District  

4 93.8% 76.2% 89.7% 71.4% 83.1% 74.0% 

8 70.0% 25.8% 64.8% 19.2% 31.6% 28.5% 

All 82.3% 52.3% 77.7% 49.1% 66.9% 53.7% 
 

 

SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved one of the science goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at or above proficiency 
on the New York State examination. 

Did not meet 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the 
state exam will be greater than that of all students in the 
same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE 

Goal 5: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a 
New York State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State schools administer multiple high school science assessments; current Regent exams 
are Living Environment, Earth Science, Chemistry and Physics.  The school administered Living 
Environment, Earth Science, and Chemistry.  It scores Regents on a scale from 0 to 100; students 
must score at least 65 to pass.  This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to 
pass any one of the Regents science exams by their fourth year in the cohort.  Students may have 
taken a particular Regents science exam multiple times or have taken multiple science exams.  
Students have until the summer of their fourth year to pass a science exam.   

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed a science Regents 
exam with a score of 65 or higher by their fourth year in the cohort. 

 

Science Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65  

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort26  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 49 89.8% 

2014 2017-18 54 94.4% 

2015 2018-19 38 89.5% 

 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed a science Regents 
exam with a score of 65 or higher. 

 

 

 

 

                                                        
26 Based on the highest score for each student on any science Regents exam 
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SUMMARY OF THE HIGH SCHOOL SCIENCE GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved both high school science goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school 
Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on a New York 
State Regents science exam by the completion of their fourth 
year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Cohort passing a Regents science exam with a score of 65 or 
above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from 
the school district of comparison. 

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 
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GOAL 6: SOCIAL STUDIES 

Goal 6: Social Studies 

Students will meet and exceed state standards for mastery of skills and content knowledge in the 
area of social studies. 

 

Goal 6: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on 
the New York State Regents U.S. History exam by the completion of their fourth year in the cohort. 

METHOD 

New York State administers two high school social studies assessments: U.S. History and Global 
History.  In order to graduate, students must pass both of these Regents exams with a score of 65 or 
higher.  This measure requires students in each Accountability Cohort to pass the two exams by the 
completion of their fourth year in the cohort.  Students may have taken the exams multiple times 
and have until the summer of their fourth year to pass it.  Once students pass it, performance on 
subsequent administrations of the same exam do not affect their status as passing.   

RESULTS 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the U.S. History 
Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher by their fourth year in the cohort. 

 

U.S. History Regents Passing Rate with a Score of 65  

by Fourth Year Accountability Cohort27  

Cohort 
Designation 

 
Fourth  

Year 

Number in 
Cohort 

Percent 
Passing with 
a score of 65 

2013 2016-17 49 89.8% 

2014 2017-18 54 87.0% 

2015 2018-19 38 84.2% 

EVALUATION 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the U.S. History 
Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher. 

 

                                                        
27 Based on the highest score for each student on a science Regents exam 
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Goal 6: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total Cohort passing the Regents Global 
History exam with a score of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort from the 
school district of comparison. 

METHOD 

The school compares the performance of students in their fourth year in the charter school high 
school Total Cohort to that of the respective cohort of students in the school district of comparison. 
Due to the availability of comparative data, this measure uses the school’s Total Cohort results and 
not the Accountability Cohort results.  Given that students may take Regents exam up through the 
summer of their fourth year, the school presents most recently available district results. 

RESULTS 

The table below shows the percent of students in each cohort that have passed the Global History 
Regents exam with a score of 65 or higher for Harlem Village Academy West and Community School 
District 5. Cohort size and percent passing for Community School District 5 for 2018-19 had not 
been released at the time this report was completed. The district’s 2017-18 percent passing is 
shown below for 2015 cohort comparison. 

 

Global History Passing Rate  

of the High School Total Cohort by Charter School and School District  

Cohort 

 
Fourth 

Year 

Charter School School District 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

Percent 
Passing 

Number 
in Cohort 

2013 2016-17 95.9% 49 65.2% 1000 

2014 2017-18 83.3% 54 56.1% 945 

2015 2018-19 100.0% 38 N/A N/A 

EVALUATION 

Harlem Village Academy West exceeded the measure. 
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SUMMARY OF THE SOCIAL STUDIES GOAL 

Harlem Village Academy West achieved all four of the Social Studies goals. 

 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school 
Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York 
State Regents U.S. History exam by the completion of their 
fourth year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent to students in the high school Total 
Cohort passing the Regents U.S. History exam with a score of 
65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total Cohort 
from the school district of comparison. 

Exceeded 

Absolute 

Each year, 75 percent of students in the high school 
Accountability Cohort will score at least 65 on the New York 
State Regents Global History exam by the completion of their 
fourth year in the cohort. 

Exceeded 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of students in the high school Total 
Cohort passing the Regents Global History exam with a score 
of 65 or above will exceed that of the high school Total 
Cohort from the school district of comparison. 

Exceeded 

 

ACTION PLAN 

Our goal is to improve our measurable results on state tests while continuing our quest to cultivate 
in our students the sophisticated intellectual capacity and social-emotional skills that they will need 
to successfully graduate from college. We have implemented an academic program that addresses 
the unique needs of the students who enter HVA West. Our program integrates curriculum, 
assessment, and teacher professional development with the goal of enabling our students to be 
college ready. 

 

 



2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT   

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report Page 60 of 60 

GOAL 7: ESSA 

Goal 7: ESSA 

Students at Harlem Village Academy West will meet and exceed state standards in all areas 
required by the ESSA accountability guidelines. 

 

Goal 7: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has not 
identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.   

METHOD 

Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal statute 
stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students among all tested 
students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the overall school results.  
As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific system for making these 
determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have latitude in establishing their own 
performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the ESSA accountability requirements.  Each 
year, the state issues School Report Cards that indicate a school’s status under the state 
accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 

Harlem Village Academy West is in “Good Standing” for the 2018-19 school year. 

Harlem Village Academy West met the measure. 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

The table below shows the school’s accountability status for 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19. 

 

Accountability Status by Year 

Year Status 

2016-17 Good Standing 

2017-18 Good Standing 

2018-19 Good Standing 

 

 

--- 
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Entry	4	Expenditures	per	Child
Created:	07/19/2019	•	Last	updated:	08/01/2019

HARLEM	VILLAGE	ACADEMY	WEST	CHARTER	SCHOOLSection	Heading

Financial	Information	
This	information	is	required	of	ALL	charter	schools.	Provide	the	following	measures	of	fiscal
performance	of	the	charter	school	in	Appendix	B	(Total	Expenditures	and	Administrative	Expenditures
Per	Child):
	

1.	Total	Expenditures	Per	Child
To	calculate	‘Total	Expenditures	per	Child’	take	total	expenditures	(from	the	unaudited	2018-
19	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)	and	divide	by	the	year	end	FTE	student	enrollment.
(Integers	Only.	No	dollar	signs	or	commas).

Note:		The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the
Audit	Guide	can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil
calculations:	Audit	Guide	available	within	the	portal	or	on	the	NYSED	website
at:	http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/regentsoversightplan/otherdocuments/auditguide2018.pdf.	

Line	1:	Total	Expenditures 16806458

Line	2:	Year	End	FTE	student	enrollment 830

Line	3:	Divide	Line	1	by	Line	2 20232
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2.	Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child

To	calculate	‘Administrative	Expenditures	per	Child'	To	calculate	“Administrative	Expenditures	per
Child”	first	add	together	the	following:

1.	Take	the	relevant	portion	from	the	‘personnel	services	cost’	row	and	the	‘management	and	general’
column	(from	the	unaudited	2018 19	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses)

2.	Any	contracted	administrative/management	fee	paid	to	other	organizations	or	corporations

3.	Take	the	total	from	above	and	divide	it	by	the	year end	FTE	enrollment.		The	relevant	portion	that	must
be	included	in	this	calculation	is	defined	as	follows:

Administrative	Expenditures:		Administration	and	management	of	the	charter	school	includes	the
activities	and	personnel	of	the	offices	of	the	chief	school	officer,	the	finance	or	business	offices,	school
operations	personnel,	data	management	and	reporting,	human	resources,	technology,	etc.	It	also
includes	those	administrative	and	management	services	provided	by	other	organizations	or	corporations
on	behalf	of	the	charter	school	for	which	the	charter	school	pays	a	fee	or	other	compensation.		Do	not
include	the	FTE	of	personnel	whose	role	is	to	directly	support	the	instructional	program.		

Notes:		
The	information	on	the	Schedule	of	Functional	Expenses	on	pages	41–43	of	the	Audit	Guide
can	help	schools	locate	the	amounts	to	use	in	the	two	per	pupil	calculations:
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html.	
Employee	benefit	costs	or	expenditures	should	not	be	reported	in	the	above	calculations.

Line	1:	Relevant	Personnel	Services
Cost	(Row) 1784497

Line	2:	Management	and	General	Cost
(Column) 748665

Line	3:	Sum	of	Line	1	and	Line	2 2533162

Line	5:	Divide	Line	3	by	the	Year	End
FTE	student	enrollment 3049

Thank	you.



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 
Auditors’ Communication on Internal Control  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Harlem Village Academy West 
Charter School (the “School”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be deficiencies, significant 
deficiencies, or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such 
deficiencies have been identified. 
 
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as 
defined above. 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, 
the Board of Trustees, the Charter Schools Institute of the State University of New York, the State 
Education Department of the State University of New York, and others within the School, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 
 
 
 
 

PKF O’CONNOR DAVIES, LLP 
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528  I  Tel: 914.381.8900  I  Fax: 914.381.8910  I  www.pkfod.com  

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or 
liability for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Board of Trustees  
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harlem Village Academy West 
Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 
2019, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

 



 

 
 

Board of Trustees  
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
Page 2 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the School as of June 30, 2019, and the change in its net assets and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2019, 
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School adopted new accounting guidance resulting in a 
change in the manner in which it presents net assets and reports certain aspects of its financial 
statements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Report on Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The schedules of activities and functional expenses by school as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 on pages 14 to 16 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards on page 17 as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards (“Uniform Guidance”), is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 22, 2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 



ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,085,821$     

Grants and contracts receivable 837,164          

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 47,662            
Due from related party 498,964          

Total Current Assets 3,469,611       

Property and equipment, net 863,075          

Note receivable - related party 750,000          

Security deposits 225,433          
Restricted cash 75,010            

5,383,129$     

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 670,187$        

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 689,243          

Refundable advances 40,793            
Due to related party 1,944,407       

Total Liabilities 3,344,630       

Net Assets

Without donor restrictions 1,751,317       
With donor restrictions 287,182          

Total Net Assets 2,038,499       

5,383,129$     

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Statement of Financial Position

June 30, 2019

See notes to financial statements
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Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
State and local per pupil operating revenue 14,505,425$  -$                 14,505,425$  
State and local per pupil facilities funding 912,000         -                   912,000         
Federal grants 1,000,017      -                   1,000,017      
Federal IDEA 137,868         -                   137,868         
State and city grants 65,263           -                   65,263           
Grant from network 152,000         -                   152,000         
Donated services 42,690           -                   42,690           
Interest income 12,904           -                   12,904           
Net assets released from restrictions 8,974             (8,974)          -                     

Total Revenue and Support 16,837,141    (8,974)          16,828,167    

EXPENSES
Program Services

Regular education 12,668,458    -                   12,668,458    
Special education 2,940,924      -                   2,940,924      
Supplemental education 262,173         -                   262,173         

Total Program Services 15,871,555    -                   15,871,555    
Supporting Services

Management and general 934,905         -                   934,905         

Total Expenses 16,806,460    -                   16,806,460    

Change in Net Assets 30,681           (8,974)          21,707           

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 1,720,636      296,156       2,016,792      

End of year 1,751,317$    287,182$     2,038,499$    

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2019

See notes to financial statements
 4



Management
Regular Special Supplemental and

Education Education Education Total General Total
Salaries and benefits 8,774,825$    2,211,066$  -$                10,985,891$  645,631$         11,631,522$     
Consultants 3,644             25,000         -                  28,644           -                      28,644              
Contracted services - temporary 135,689         34,191         -                  169,880         9,984               179,864            
Audit fees -                     -                   -                  -                     15,000             15,000              
Legal fees -                     -                   -                  -                     45,641             45,641              
Books and curriculum materials 204,356         -                   -                  204,356         -                      204,356            
Recruiting and marketing 3,969             -                   -                  3,969             -                      3,969                
Student testing 86,265           -                   -                  86,265           -                      86,265              
Staff development 337,589         -                   -                  337,589         -                      337,589            
Field trips -                     -                   45,014        45,014           -                      45,014              
After school activities -                     -                   217,159      217,159         -                      217,159            
Supplies and materials 248,256         62,556         -                  310,812         18,266             329,078            
Office and postage 14,670           3,696           -                  18,366           1,079               19,445              
Insurance 140,513         35,406         -                  175,919         10,338             186,257            
Telephone and communication 18,303           4,612           -                  22,915           1,347               24,262              
Repairs and maintenance 213,773         53,866         -                  267,639         15,729             283,368            
Facilities expense 1,583,432      398,990       -                  1,982,422      116,505           2,098,927         
Security 141,197         35,579         -                  176,776         10,390             187,166            
Depreciation and amortization 195,106         49,163         -                  244,269         14,355             258,624            
Food and travel 55,376           -                   -                  55,376           22,814             78,190              
Equipment and furniture 60,471           15,237         -                  75,708           4,449               80,157              
Technology costs 405,140         -                   -                  405,140         -                      405,140            
Miscellaneous 45,884           11,562         -                  57,446           3,377               60,823              

Total Expenses 12,668,458$  2,940,924$  262,173$    15,871,555$  934,905$         16,806,460$     

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Services

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Statement of Functional Expenses

See notes to financial statements
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 21,707$          
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 

to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 258,624          
Depreciation charged to related party 38,242            
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grants and contracts receivable (55,926)          
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 20,825            
Security deposit (166,660)        
Due from related party (37,350)          
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 406,786          
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes (111,926)        
Refundable advances 40,793            
Due to related party 873,120          

Net Cash from Operating Activities 1,288,235       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (441,107)        
Restricted cash (75,010)          

Net Cash from Investing Activities (516,117)        

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 772,118          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 1,313,703       

End of year 2,085,821$     

Statement of Cash Flows

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Year Ended June 30, 2019

See notes to financial statements
 6



Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
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1. Organization and Tax Status  
 

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School (the “School”) is a New York State, not-for-profit 
corporation that was incorporated on September 13, 2002 to operate a charter school pursuant 
to Article 56 of the Education Law of the State of New York. The School is dedicated to 
providing a high quality college preparatory education to primarily disadvantaged students. 
Classes commenced in Harlem, New York, in September 2003 and the School provided 
education to approximately 830 students in grades kindergarten through twelve during the 
2018-2019 school year. 
 
The Board of Trustees of the State University of New York (“SUNY”) originally approved the 
application for the School on September 13, 2002. SUNY approved and issued several 
renewals to the School’s charter expiring on July 31, 2023.  
 
On June 6, 2018, SUNY approved the School to operate a new charter school, Harlem Village 
Academy West 2 Charter School (“West 2”). Classes for West 2 commenced in Harlem, New 
York, in August 2019. West 2 incurred start-up and planning expenses during the year ended 
June 30, 2019. 
 
Except for taxes that may be due for unrelated business income, the School is exempt from 
federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and from state and 
local income taxes under comparable laws.  

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”), which requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Accordingly actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Change in Accounting Principle 
 
On July 1, 2018, the School adopted new guidance regarding the Presentation of Financial 
Statements for Not-for-Profit Entities. This guidance requires the School to collapse the three-
category (unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted) classification of net 
assets into two categories: with donor restrictions and without donor restrictions. In addition, the 
new guidance requires the School to make certain expanded disclosures relating to the liquidity 
of financial assets, and expenses by both their natural and functional classification in one 
location in the financial statements. As a result of implementing this standard, prior year 
amounts for unrestricted net assets were reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Net Assets Presentation  
 

Resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into net 
asset categories established according to nature and purpose as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions - consist of resources available for the general 
support of the School’s operations. Net assets without donor restrictions may be used at 
the discretion of the School’s management and/or the Board of Trustees. 
  
Net assets with donor restrictions – represents amounts restricted by donors for specific 
activities of the School or to be used at a future date. The School records contributions as 
net assets with donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit their 
use either through purpose or time restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is fulfilled, net assets with donor 
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the 
statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances held in bank accounts and highly liquid 
financial instruments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. 
 
Restricted Cash 

 
Under the provisions of its charter, the School established a reserve fund of $75,000 to 
cover debts in the event of the School’s dissolution. 

 
Property and Equipment 

 
The School follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and equipment with 
costs in excess of $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease, inclusive of all renewal periods, which are 
reasonably assured, or the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchased property and 
equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Minor costs of maintenance and 
repairs are expensed as incurred. All property and equipment purchased with government 
funding is capitalized, unless the government agency retains legal title to such assets, in which 
case such assets are expensed as incurred.   

 
Depreciation and amortization is recognized on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of such assets as follows:  

 
Equipment      3 years 
Furniture and fixtures    5 - 7 years 
Software      3 years 
Library books     3 years 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Property and Equipment (continued) 
 

Property and equipment are reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly 
changes or another indicator of possible impairment is identified. If the carrying amount for the 
asset is not recoverable, the asset is written down to its fair value. There were no asset 
impairments for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

 
Refundable Advances 

 
The School records certain government operating revenue as refundable advances until 
related services are performed, at which time they are recognized as revenue. 

 
Revenue and Support 

 
Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status and 
based on the number of students enrolled is recorded when services are performed in 
accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and other state and local funds are recorded 
when expenditures are incurred and billable to the government agency. 

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the School that is, in 
substance, unconditional. Grants and other contributions of cash are reported as support with 
donor restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations. Donor restricted contributions and 
grants that are made to support the School’s current period activities are recorded as revenue 
without donor restrictions. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of donation.  

 
Donated Services 
 
The School recognizes contributions of services if they create or enhance nonfinancial 
assets, require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and 
would typically need to be purchased if not provided by the School, and are measurable.  
 
One entity provided legal services to the School at no charge. The value of these services 
meets the criteria for recognition in the financial statements and was recorded at a fair value 
of $42,690. The value of these services is allocated to management and general services in 
the accompanying statements of activities and functional expenses. 

 
Functional Expense Allocation 

 
The majority of expenses can generally be directly identified with the program or supporting 
service to which they relate and are charged accordingly. Other expenses by function have 
been allocated among program and supporting services classifications on the basis of periodic 
time and expense studies and other basis as determined by management of the School to be 
appropriate. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
 

The School recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely 
than not to be sustained. Management has determined that the School had no uncertain tax 
positions that would require financial statement recognition or disclosure. The School is no 
longer subject to examinations by the applicable taxing jurisdictions for years prior to 
June 30, 2016. 

 
Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management 

 
Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the 
financial statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, 
which date is October 22, 2019.  
 

3. Grants and Contracts Receivable 
 
 Grants and contracts receivable consist of federal, state, and city entitlements and grants. The 

School expects to collect these receivables within one year. Management has assessed the 
need for an allowance and has determined that such an allowance is not necessary. 

 
4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) 
 

The School is an affiliate of Harlem Village Academies (the “Network”), a New York State not-
for-profit corporation and Harlem Village Academy East Charter School ("HVAE"), a charter 
school with common management and Board of Trustees. The School was not required to 
consolidate with HVAE as the School does not have an economic interest in the net assets of 
HVAE. The Network supports the School by providing educational and operating materials, 
training, financial support and other services.  
 
On May 21, 2010, the School signed a promissory note for $750,000 with the Network. The 
note was due May 31, 2013. The Board of Trustees approved an extension to September 30, 
2021 (Repayment Date). If the note is repaid on or before the Repayment Date, there will be no 
interest accrued on the note. If the note is paid back after the Repayment Date, the Network 
shall pay interest at the lower of ten percent (10%) per annum or the maximum rate per annum 
permitted by applicable law on the outstanding principal amount of the note. The note may be 
repaid by the Network in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any time upon five (5) 
days advance written notice to the School. 
 
For operational efficiency and purchasing power, the School shares certain expenses with 
HVAE and the Network. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School incurred $1,236,992 
of net operating expenses paid by the Network on behalf of the School, and HVAE incurred 
$2,059,144 of net operating expenses paid by the School on behalf of HVAE. At June 30, 
2019, the balance due from HVAE was $498,964 and the balance due to the Network was 
$1,944,407. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Network granted $152,000 to support the School’s 
operations. 
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4. Related Party Transactions (not disclosed elsewhere) (continued) 
 
On April 4, 2012, HVA 124 LLC, a limited liability company in which the Network is the sole 
member, closed on the purchase of the former Rice High School building on West 124th Street. 
Renovations of the building were substantially completed in August 2013. The elementary 
school started the 2013-14 school year in the newly renovated facility. Renovations on the 
building were partially funded through New Markets Tax Credit loans to HVA 124, LLC which 
leases the building to the School. The School pays rent monthly as stipulated in the lease 
agreement. 
 
The Network, with partial funding through a grant from the New York City Department of 
Education (which grant is administered by the School Construction Authority or “SCA”), 
completed the building of a new school facility (the “High School”) in August 2012 to be used by 
both the School and HVAE (the “Schools”). The High School opened in August 2012. Civic 
Builders, a non-profit charter school developer, served as developer of the project under a 
development agreement with the Network. On June 23, 2017, the conveyance of the school 
portion of the building to SCA was completed, SCA leased it to Civic Builders, which subleased 
it to HVA 125 LLC. Under the sublease terms, the Schools that occupy the premises are 
required to meet certain academic performance targets, which are less rigorous than the 
targets of the Schools’ authorizer. There is no rent, but the Schools will pay operating expenses 
and fund a replacement reserve maintained by the Network. The lease and sublease have at 
least a 30 year term, which may be extended by the Network under certain conditions. 
 
On July 1, 2019, the Network entered into a three year lease for elementary and middle school 
activities with The Refuge Church of Our Lord Jesus Christ of the Apostolic Faith, Inc., with an 
option to extend the lease for an additional two years. Effective July 1, 2019, the Network 
assigned this lease to the School. Lease payments commenced July 1, 2019 and will expire on 
June 30, 2022. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Network paid a security deposit for 
this lease on behalf of the School in the amount of $168,750 and is included in security 
deposits on the accompanying statement of financial position. 
 

5. Property and Equipment 
 

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30, 2019: 
 

Equipment 1,912,946$    
Furniture and fixtures 504,501
Software 3,999
Library books 73,427
Leasehold improvements 735,487         

3,230,360      
Accumulated depreciation
         and amortization (2,367,285)     

863,075$        
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5. Property and Equipment (continued) 
 
Depreciation and amortization expense was $296,866 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
Depreciation expense in the amount of $38,242 was allocated to HVAE, resulting in the 
School’s net depreciation and amortization expense of $258,624. 
 

6. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions 
limiting their use within one year of the statement of financial position date, are comprised of 
the following at June 30, 2019: 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 2,085,821$    
Grants and contracts receivable 837,164
Due from related party 498,964         

3,421,949$     
 

As part of the School’s liquidity management plan, the status of grants and accounts receivable 
is monitored regularly and any excess cash is invested in highly liquid instruments. Net assets 
with donor restrictions of $287,182 represent the net book value of leasehold improvements at 
June 30, 2019. This amount will be released from restriction at the same rate as recognition of 
amortization expense (see Note 9). 
 

7. Employee Benefit Plan 
 
The School maintains a pension plan qualified under Internal Revenue Code 403(b), for the 
benefit of its eligible employees. Under the plan, the School provided matching contributions up 
to 4% of the participant’s annual compensation. Employer match for the year ended June 30, 
2019 amounted to $137,496. 

 
8. Concentration of Credit Risk 

 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the School to concentrations of credit and market 
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions, which 
from time to time may exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) limit. The 
School does not believe that a significant risk of loss due to the failure of a financial institution 
presently exists. As of June 30, 2019, approximately $1,910,000 of cash was maintained with 
an institution in excess of FDIC limits. 
 

9. Concentration of Revenue and Support 
 

The School receives a substantial portion of its revenue and support from the New York City 
Department of Education. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the School received 
approximately 92% of its total revenue and support from the New York City Department of 
Education. If the charter school laws were modified, reducing or eliminating these revenues, 
the School’s finances could be materially adversely affected. 
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10. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
 

Net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2019 consists of a State Stimulus Fund grant for 
$350,000 to help pay for the development costs of its permanent high school facility. The 
School expended and capitalized $350,000 during the year ended June 30, 2009 related to this 
grant. These costs are classified as leasehold improvements under property and equipment on 
the School’s statement of financial position. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified 
to net assets without donor restrictions as amortization expense is recognized over the life of 
the leasehold improvements. During the year ended June 30, 2019, $8,974 was released from 
restriction. At June 30, 2019, net assets with donor restrictions were $287,182. 

 
11. Commitments 
 

On May 22, 2013, the School entered into a 25 year lease for elementary school facilities with 
HVA 124 LLC, a related party (see Note 4). Lease payments commenced September 1, 2013 
and will expire on April 30, 2038.  
 
On July 1, 2019, the School was assigned a 3 year lease for elementary school facilities by the 
Network, a related party (see Note 4). Lease payments commenced July 1, 2019 and will 
expire on June 30, 2022. 
 
Future minimum payments under the operating leases are as follows: 
 
2020 1,632,600$     
2021 1,691,700
2022 1,705,470
2023 1,003,200
2024 1,003,200
Thereafter 16,549,600     

23,585,770$    
 

12. Contingency 
 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits might 
result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the opinion 
that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying 
financial statements. Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying 
financial statements for such potential claims. 

 
 

* * * * * 
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West 2

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Total

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

State and local per pupil operating revenue 14,505,425$   -$                    14,505,425$   -$                    14,505,425$   

State and local per pupil facilities funding 912,000          -                      912,000          -                      912,000          

Federal grants 468,017          -                      468,017          532,000 1,000,017

Federal IDEA 137,868 -                      137,868          -                      137,868

State and city grants 65,263            -                      65,263            -                      65,263            

Grant from network 152,000          -                      152,000          -                      152,000          

Donated services 42,690            -                      42,690            -                      42,690            

Interest and other income 12,904            -                      12,904            -                      12,904            

Net assets released from restrictions 8,974              (8,974)             -                      -                      -                      

Total Revenue and Support 16,305,141     (8,974)             16,296,167     532,000          16,828,167     

EXPENSES

Program Services

Regular education 12,471,006     -                      12,471,006     197,452          12,668,458     

Special education 2,940,924       -                      2,940,924       -                      2,940,924       

Supplemental education 262,173          -                      262,173          -                      262,173          

Total Program Services 15,674,103     -                      15,674,103     197,452          15,871,555     

Supporting Services

Management and general 885,395          -                      885,395          49,510            934,905          

Total Expenses 16,559,498     -                      16,559,498     246,962          16,806,460     

Change in Net Assets (254,357)         (8,974)             (263,331)         285,038          21,707            

NET ASSETS

Beginning of year 1,720,636       296,156          2,016,792       -                      2,016,792       

End of year 1,466,279$     287,182$        1,753,461$     285,038$        2,038,499$     

West 1

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Schedule of Activities by School

Year Ended June 30, 2019

See independent auditor's report
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Management

Regular Special Supplemental and

Education Education Education Total General Total

Salaries and benefits 8,704,608$    2,211,066$  -$                10,915,674$  609,848$         11,525,522$     

Consultants 3,644             25,000         -                  28,644           -                      28,644              

Contracted services - temporary 135,689         34,191         -                  169,880         9,984              179,864            

Audit fees -                     -                   -                  -                     15,000             15,000              

Legal fees -                     -                   -                  -                     45,641             45,641              

Books and curriculum materials 142,650         -                   -                  142,650         -                      142,650            

Recruiting and marketing 3,969             -                   -                  3,969             -                      3,969                

Student testing 86,265           -                   -                  86,265           -                      86,265              

Staff development 329,184         -                   -                  329,184         -                      329,184            

Field trips -                     -                   45,014        45,014           -                      45,014              

After school activities -                     -                   217,159      217,159         -                      217,159            

Supplies and materials 248,256         62,556         -                  310,812         18,266             329,078            

Office and postage 14,670           3,696           -                  18,366           1,079              19,445              

Insurance 140,513         35,406         -                  175,919         10,338             186,257            

Telephone and communication 18,303           4,612           -                  22,915           1,347              24,262              

Repairs and maintenance 213,773         53,866         -                  267,639         15,729             283,368            

Facilities expense 1,563,683      398,990       -                  1,962,673      106,441           2,069,114         

Security 141,197         35,579         -                  176,776         10,390             187,166            

Depreciation and amortization 195,106         49,163         -                  244,269         14,355             258,624            

Food and travel 55,376           -                   -                  55,376           22,814             78,190              

Equipment and furniture 53,283           15,237         -                  68,520           786                 69,306              

Technology costs 374,953         -                   -                  374,953         -                      374,953            

Miscellaneous 45,884           11,562         -                  57,446           3,377              60,823              

Total Expenses 12,471,006$  2,940,924$  262,173$    15,674,103$  885,395$         16,559,498$     

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Schedule of Functional Expenses - West 1

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Services

See independent auditor's report
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Program
Services Management
Regular and

Education General Total
Salaries and benefits 70,217$           35,783$           106,000$           
Books and curriculum materials 61,706             -                       61,706               
Staff development 8,405               -                       8,405                 
Facilities expense 19,749             10,064             29,813               
Equipment and furniture 7,188               3,663               10,851               
Technology costs 30,187             -                       30,187               

Total Expenses 197,452$         49,510$           246,962$           

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Schedule of Functional Expenses - West 2
Year Ended June 30, 2019

See independent auditor's report
 16
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Pass-through Total 
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor Federal CFDA Entity Identifying Provided to Federal 
Program or Cluster Title  Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

   Pass-through the New York State Education Department:

      Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 0021194286 -$                          413,462$         

      Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
(formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 00147194286 -                            54,555             

      Charter Schools 84.282 0089191005 -                            532,000           

         Total U.S. Department of Education -                            1,000,017        

         Total Expenditures of Federal Awards -$                          1,000,017$      

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2019

See independent auditors’ report and notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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Harlem Village Academy West Charter School  
 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 
 

1. Basis of Presentation 
 
 The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes 

the federal award activity of Harlem Village Academy West Charter School (the “School”) 
under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the 
Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the School, it is not intended 
to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the 
School.  

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. 

  
3. Indirect Cost Rate 
 
 The School has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 

under the Uniform Guidance. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With 

Government Auditing Standards 
 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Board of Trustees  
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of Harlem Village Academy West Charter School (the “School”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related statements of activities, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
School’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 

 



 

 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
Page 2 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances 
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control 
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 

  
 

Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
 
We have audited Harlem Village Academy West Charter School’s (the “School”) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that 
could have a direct and material effect on each of the School’s major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. The School’s major federal programs are identified in the summary 
of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the School’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(“Uniform Guidance”). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances.  
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
School’s compliance. 

 
 



 

 

Board of Trustees 
Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
Page 2 
 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Harlem Village Academy West Charter School complied, in all material respects, 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019.   
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Harrison, New York 
October 22, 2019 
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Harlem Village Academy West Charter School 
 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements  

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the 
    financial statements audited were 
  prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP:   Unmodified 
 Internal control over financial reporting: 
   Material weakness(es) identified?             yes     X    no 
   Significant deficiency(ies) identified?             yes     X    none reported 
 Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?           yes     X    no 

 
Federal Awards 
 Internal control over major federal programs: 
  Material weakness(es) identified?            yes     X    no 
  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?            yes     X    none reported 
 Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 
  for major federal programs:    Unmodified 
 Any audit findings disclosed that are required  
  to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?          yes     X    no 
 

 Identification of major federal programs: 

     CFDA Numbers                                            Name of Federal Programs or Clusters                  
  84.010       Title I Grants to Local Education Agencies 
      

 Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
 between Type A and Type B programs:  $750,000 

 Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?            yes     X    no 
 
 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
During our audit, we noted no material findings for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
 
During our audit, we noted no material instances of noncompliance and none of the costs tested 
which were reported in the federal financially assisted programs are questioned or 
recommended to be disallowed. 
 
Section IV - Prior Year’s Findings 
 
There were no prior year audit findings. 
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Examples might include: a written management letter was not issued; the school did not expend federal 
funds in excess of the Single Audit Threshold of $750,000; the management letter response will be 
submitted by the following date (should be no later than 30 days from the submission of the report); etc   

    If not included, state the reason(s) below.  Or, if not applicable fill 
i "N/ ")

Form 990; or Extension Form 
8868
Federal Single Audit/ Uniform 
Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, 
Subpart F

https://nysed-cso-reports.myreviewroom.com/

Federal Single Audit/
Uniform Guidance in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F.



HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Financial Position

as of June 30, 2019

ASSETS 2018-19

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $                 2,085,821 
Grants and contracts receivable                        837,164 
Accounts receivables                                    - 
Prepaid expenses                          47,662 

Contributions and other receivables                        498,964 
                     3,469,611 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net                        863,075 

OTHER ASSETS                     1,050,443 

TOTAL ASSETS                     5,383,129 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $                    670,187 
Accrued payroll and benefits                        689,243 
Deferred Revenue                          40,793 
Current maturities of long-term debt                                    - 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable                                    - 

Other                     1,944,407 
                    3,344,630 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Rent                                    - 

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities                                    - 

                                   - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES                     3,344,630 

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted                     1,751,317 

Temporarily restricted                        287,182 

TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES



TOTAL NET ASSETS                     2,038,499 

                    5,383,129 

CK - Should be zero                               - 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS



HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST C  
Statement of Financial Po

as of June 30, 201

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses

Contributions and other receivables

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and benefits
Deferred Revenue
Current maturities of long-term debt
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable

Other 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Deferred Rent

All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted

TOTAL CURRENT 
ASSETS

TOTAL CURRENT 
LIABILITIES

TOTAL LONG-TERM 
LIABILITIES

  ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
  ancial Pos ion

    19

2017-18

 $                     1,313,703 
                           781,238 
                                      - 
                             68,487 

                           461,614 
                        2,625,042 

                           718,834 

                           808,773 

                        4,152,649 

 $                        263,401 
                           801,169 
                                      - 
                                      - 
                                      - 

                        1,071,287 
                        2,135,857 

                                      - 

                                      - 

                                      - 

                        2,135,857 

                        1,720,636 

                           296,156 



TOTAL NET ASSETS

CK - Should be zero

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS

                        2,016,792 

                        4,152,649 

                                 - 



HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL

Statement of Activities

as of June 30, 2019

2018-19 2017-18

 Unrestricted  Total  Total 

 REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
 Public School District 

 Resident Student Enrollment  $       13,121,886  $                     -  $    13,121,886  $                   13,079,465 
 Students with disabilities             1,383,539                         -          1,383,539                         2,332,942 

 Grants and Contracts 
 State and local                  65,263                         -               65,263                              67,018 
 Federal - Title and IDEA                605,885                         -             605,885                            699,938 
 Federal - Other                532,000                         -             532,000                                       - 
 Other                            -                         -                         -                                       - 

 NYC DoE Rental Assistance                912,000                         -             912,000                            912,000 

 Food Service/Child Nutrition Program                            -                         -                         -                                       - 

 TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT        16,620,573                         -        16,620,573                  17,091,363 

 EXPENSES 
 Program Services 

 Regular Education  $       12,668,458  $                     -  $    12,668,458  $                   14,661,140 
 Special Education             2,940,924                         -          2,940,924                         1,624,159 
 Other Programs                262,173                         -             262,173                            242,152 

 Total Program Services        15,871,555                         -        15,871,555                  16,527,451 
 Management and general                934,905                         -             934,905                            843,221 

 Fundraising                            -                         -                                       - 
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES        16,806,460                         -        16,806,460                  17,370,672 

RPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS           (185,887)                         -           (185,887)                     (279,309)

 SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
 Contributions 

 Foundations  $            152,000  $                        -  $         152,000  $                        202,217 
 Individuals                            -                            -                         -                                       - 
 Corporations                  42,690                            -               42,690                              85,943 

 Fundraising                            -                            -                         -                                       - 
 Interest income                  12,904                            -               12,904                                1,613 
 Miscellaneous income                            -                            -                         -                                       - 

 Net assets released from restriction                    8,974                   (8,974)                         -                                       - 
 TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE             216,568               (8,974)             207,594                       289,773 

 CHANGE IN NET ASSETS               30,681               (8,974)               21,707                         10,464 

 NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR             1,720,636                296,156          2,016,792                         2,006,328 

 PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS                            -                            -                         -                                       - 

 NET ASSETS END OF YEAR  $      1,751,317  $         287,182  $      2,038,499  $                2,016,792 

 Temporarily 
Restricted 



HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Cash Flows

as of June 30, 2019

2018-19 2017-18

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in net assets  $                            21,707  $                            10,464 
Revenues from School Districts                                          -                                          - 
Accounts Receivable                                          -                                          - 
Due from School Districts                                          -                                          - 
Depreciation                              296,866                              205,314 
Grants Receivable                               (55,926)                               (82,090)
Due from NYS                                          -                                          - 
Grant revenues                                          -                                          - 
Prepaid Expenses                                20,825                               (27,448)
Accounts Payable                              406,786                             (110,856)
Accrued Expenses                             (111,926)                               (86,345)
Accrued Liabilities                             (166,660)                               (12,960)
Contributions and fund-raising activities                                          -                                          - 
Miscellaneous sources                                          -                                          - 
Deferred Revenue                                40,793                                          - 
Interest payments                                          -                                          - 
Due from Related Party                               (37,350)                              414,610 
Due to Related Party                              873,120                             (404,572)

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $                       1,288,235  $                           (93,883)

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment                             (441,107)                             (329,632)
Other                               (75,010)                                          - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  $                         (516,117)  $                         (329,632)

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt                                          -                                          - 
Other                                          -                                          - 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  $                                      -  $                                      - 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  $                          772,118  $                         (423,515)
Cash at beginning of year                           1,313,703                           1,737,218 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $                       2,085,821  $                       1,313,703 



HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
Statement of Functional Expenses

as of June 30, 2019

2018-19 2017-18
Program Services Supporting Services

Total Fund-raising  Total
Personnel Services Costs  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $

Administrative Staff Personnel               27.40          2,380,163             599,749                         -       2,979,912                      -             175,127          175,127       3,155,039          2,642,103 
Instructional Personnel               96.70          4,735,975          1,193,364                         -       5,929,338                      -             348,462          348,462       6,277,800          7,448,103 
Non-Instructional Personnel                         -                         -                         -                      -                      -                         -                      -                      -                         - 
Total Salaries and Staff          124.10       7,116,138       1,793,113                      -       8,909,250                      -          523,589          523,589       9,432,839     10,090,206 

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes          1,554,960             391,817                         -       1,946,777                      -              114,410          114,410       2,061,187          2,228,898 
Retirement             103,727               26,137                         -          129,864                      -                 7,632              7,632          137,496             166,153 
Management Company Fees                         -                         -                         -                      -                      -                         -                      -                      -                         - 
Legal Service                         -                         -                         -                      -                      -               45,641            45,641            45,641              113,154 
Accounting / Audit Services                         -                         -                         -                      -                      -               15,000            15,000            15,000               15,000 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting Servic             139,333               59,191                         -          198,524                      -                 9,984              9,984          208,508             225,033 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance In          1,534,434             386,644                         -       1,921,078                      -              112,901          112,901       2,033,979          1,774,519 
Repairs & Maintenance             213,773               53,866                         -          267,639                      -               15,729            15,729          283,368             138,628 
Insurance             140,513               35,406                         -          175,919                      -               10,338            10,338          186,257             172,926 
Utilities             190,195               47,925                         -          238,120                      -               13,994            13,994          252,114             259,763 
Supplies / Materials             452,612               62,556                         -          515,168                      -               18,266            18,266          533,434             485,687 
Equipment / Furnishings               60,471               15,237                         -            75,708                      -                 4,449              4,449            80,157               84,670 
Staff Development             337,589                         -                         -          337,589                      -                         -                      -          337,589             659,497 
Marketing  / Recruitment                 3,969                         -                         -              3,969                      -                         -                      -              3,969               25,805 
Technology             423,443                 4,612                         -          428,055                      -                 1,347              1,347          429,402             347,881 
Food Service               55,376                         -                         -            55,376                      -               22,814            22,814            78,190               59,888 
Student Services               86,265                         -             262,173          348,438                      -                         -                      -          348,438             278,332 
Office Expense               14,670                 3,696                         -            18,366                      -                 1,079              1,079            19,445               20,661 
Depreciation             195,106               49,163                         -          244,269                      -               14,355            14,355          258,624             205,314 

OTHER               45,884                11,562                         -            57,446                      -                 3,377              3,377            60,823               18,657 
Total Expenses  $ 12,668,458  $   2,940,924  $      262,173  $ 15,871,555  $                  -  $      934,905  $      934,905  $ 16,806,460  $ 17,370,672 

No. of 
Positions

Regular 
Education

Special 
Education

Other 
Education

Management 
and General  Total
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Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition)
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE

Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

SCHOOL
Name: Harlem Village Academy West Charter School

CONTACT INFORMATION
Contact Name: Chuck Klein
Contact Title: VP of Finance
Contact Email:
Contact Phone:

REPORT PERIOD
Current Academic Year: 2019-20
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19
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PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET
  2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S)
Actual

Enrollment

Original
Budgeted
Enrollment

Revised
Budgeted
Enrollment

Original
Budgeted
Enrollment

Revised
Budgeted
Enrollment

Original
Budgeted
Enrollment

Revised
Budgeted
Enrollment

Original
Budgeted
Enrollment



   

8 9 10 11 12
55 50 44 35.5 27.5

ACTUAL QUARTERLY
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual

0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Revised
Budgeted
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

     

  

  
   

   
TER 4

                D' Column(s)
            s for the

          
 
  TER 4
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ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4

Revised
Budgeted
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

Actual
Enrollment

 
  TER 4
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HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
ALANCE SHEET

2019-20

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - -
Grants and contracts receivable - - - - -
Accounts receivables - - - - -
Prepaid Expenses - - - - -
Contributions and other receivables - - - - -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - - -

OTHER ASSETS - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - - - - -
Accrued payroll and benefits - - - - -
Deferred Revenue - - - - -
Current maturities of long-term debt - - - - -
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable - - - - -
Other - - - - -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - - - - -

LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted - - - - -
Temporarily restricted - - - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - - - -

Please enter balance sheet data forthe Ed Corp
Harlem VillageAcademy Charter School (Combined)

only on thistemplate.
The balance sheet should include data for
allcharter schools operated by the Ed Corp.
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Annual Report Requirement
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools

HARLEM VILLAGE ACADEMY WEST CHARTER SCHOOL
2019-20

Administrative
expenditures per pupil: $0.00

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all
general administration salaries and other general
administration expenditures divided by the total
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit
costs or expenditures should not be reported here.

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 
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Entry	8	BOT	Table
Last	updated:	07/24/2019

1.	 SUNY AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide	information	for	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	are	required	to	provide

information	for	all	 VOTING	and	NON VOTING 	trustees.

1.	Current	Board	Member	Information	(Enter	info	for	each	BOT	member)

Trustee
Name
and
Email
Address

Position
on	the
Board

Committ
ee
Affiliation
s

Voting
Member
Per	By
Laws
(Y/N)

Number
of	Terms
Served

Start
Date	of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

End	Date
of
Current
Term
(MM/DD/Y
YYY)

Board
Meetings
Attended
During
2018 19

1

David
Zwiebel

Chair N/A Yes 18 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

2

Daniel
Pianko

Treasurer N/A Yes 6 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

3

Deborah
Kenny

Secretary N/A Yes 18 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

4
Andrew
August Trustee/M

ember N/A Yes 18 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

5

Judith
Turner
Hamersc
hlag Trustee/M

ember N/A Yes 6 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less

6

Ronald
Sernau Trustee/M

ember N/A Yes 1 07/01/20
19

06/30/20
20 5	or	less
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1a.	Are	there	more	than	9
members	of	the	Board	of
Trustees?

No

3.	Number	of	Board	meetings
held	during	2018-19

4

4.	Number	of	Board	meetings
scheduled	for	2019-20

4

7

Erica
Newman

Trustee/M
ember N/A Yes 1 07/01/20

19
06/30/20
20 5	or	less

8

9

2.	INFORMATION	ABOUT	MEMBERS	OF	THE	BOARD	OF	TRUSTEES

1.	 SUNY-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	response	relative	to	VOTING	Trustees	only.		
2.	 REGENTS,	NYCDOE,	and	BUFFALO	BOE-AUTHORIZED	charter	schools	provide	a	response
relative	to	all	trustees.	

a.	Total	Number	of	BOT	Members	on
June	30,	2019 7

b.Total	Number	of	Members	Added
During	2018 19 2

c.	Total	Number	of	Members	who
Departed	during	2018 19 0

d.Total	Number	of	members	in	2018 19,
as	set	by	in	Bylaws,	Resolution	or
Minutes

7

Thank	you.
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Entry	10	Enrollment	and	Retention	of	Special
Populations
Last	updated:	07/29/2019

Instructions	for	Reporting	Enrollment	and	Retention	Strategies
Describe	the	efforts	the	charter	school	has	made	in	2018 19	toward	meeting	targets	to	attract	and	retain
enrollment	of	students	with	disabilities,	English	language	learners/Multilingual	learners,	and	students	who
are	economically	disadvantaged.	In	addition,	describe	the	school’s	plans	for	meeting	or	making	progress
toward	meeting	its	enrollment	and	retention	targets	in	2019 20.

HARLEM	VILLAGE	ACADEMY	WEST	CHARTER	SCHOOLSection	Heading

Recruitment/Attraction	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Recruitment	Efforts	in	2018 19 Describe	Recruitment	Plans	in	2019 20

Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

The	school	used	the	following	strategies	to
attract	economically	disadvantaged	students
in	the	2018 2019	school	year:
•	Targeting	mailings	at	zip	codes	with	high
concentrations	of	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch
•	Developing	relationships	with	programs
such	as	Head	Start,	the	Children’s	Aid
Society	and	other	schools	and	organizations
that	serve	high needs	populations
•	Attending	community	fairs	that	attract
high needs	populations
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
economically	disadvantaged	populations	and
affordable	housing	buildings
•	Posting	bus	stop	advertisements	in
neighborhoods	with	high	concentrations
students	eligible	for	free	or	reduced	lunch.	In
addition,	the	school	sets	aside	the	first	30%
of	its	seats	for	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch.
•	Street	Teams	in	neighborhoods	with	high
concentrations	of	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch

The	school	anticipates	using	the	following
strategies	to	attract	economically
disadvantaged	students	in	the	2019 2020
school	year:
•	Targeting	mailings	at	zip	codes	with	high
concentrations	of	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch
•	Developing	relationships	with	programs
such	as	Head	Start,	the	Children’s	Aid
Society	and	other	schools	and	organizations
that	serve	high needs	populations
•	Attending	community	fairs	that	attract
high needs	populations
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
economically	disadvantaged	populations	and
affordable	housing	buildings
•	Posting	bus	stop	advertisements	in
neighborhoods	with	high	concentrations
students	eligible	for	free	or	reduced	lunch.	In
addition,	the	school	sets	aside	the	first	30%
of	its	seats	for	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch.
•	Street	Teams	in	neighborhoods	with	high
concentrations	of	students	eligible	for	free	or
reduced	lunch

The	school	used	the	following	strategies	to
attract	English	language	learners	in	the
2018 2019	school	year:

The	school	anticipates	using	the	following
strategies	to	attract	English	language
learners	in	the	2019 2020	school	year:
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English
Langua
ge
Learner
s/Multili
ngual
Learner
s

•	Mailing	fliers	and	postcards	to	prospective
parents	in	languages	other	than	English,
particularly	Spanish
•	Targeting	mailings	at	zip	codes	with	high
concentrations	of	English	language	learners
•	Conducting	open	houses	in	languages
other	than	English	and/or	providing
translation
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
English	language	learner	populations
•	Posting	bus	stop	advertisements	in
neighborhoods	with	high	concentrations	of
English	language	learners	and	noting	in	the
advertisements	that	“se	habla	español”
•	Soliciting	referrals	from	parents	of	English
language	learners	currently	enrolled	at	HVA

•	Mailing	fliers	and	postcards	to	prospective
parents	in	languages	other	than	English,
particularly	Spanish
•	Targeting	mailings	at	zip	codes	with	high
concentrations	of	English	language	learners
•	Conducting	open	houses	in	languages
other	than	English	and/or	providing
translation
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
English	language	learner	populations
•	Posting	bus	stop	advertisements	in
neighborhoods	with	high	concentrations	of
English	language	learners	and	noting	in	the
advertisements	that	“se	habla	español”
•	Soliciting	referrals	from	parents	of	English
language	learners	currently	enrolled	at	HVA

Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

The	school	used	the	following	strategies	to
attract	students	with	disabilities	in	the	2018
2019	school	year:
•	Developing	relationships	with	programs
such	as	Head	Start,	the	Children’s	Aid
Society	and	other	schools	and	organizations
that	serve	high needs	populations
•	Attending	community	fairs	that	attract
high needs	populations
•	Conducting	open	houses	focused	on	the
Special	Education	services	offered	by	the
school
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
high needs	populations

The	school	anticipates	using	the	following
strategies	to	attract	students	with	disabilities
in	the	2019 2020	school	year:
•	Developing	relationships	with	programs
such	as	Head	Start,	the	Children’s	Aid
Society	and	other	schools	and	organizations
that	serve	high needs	populations
•	Attending	community	fairs	that	attract
high needs	populations
•	Conducting	open	houses	focused	on	the
Special	Education	services	offered	by	the
school
•	Posting	fliers	in	buildings	frequented	by
high needs	populations

Retention	Efforts	Toward	Meeting	Targets

Describe	Retention	Efforts	in	2018 19 Describe	Retention	Plans	in	2019 20

VA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	developed	retention	strategies
and	executed	them	together.	The	school
used	these	strategies,	including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Pot	luck	dinners	during	the	first	week	of
school
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Increased	communication	with	incoming
families	
•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival

VA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	develop	retention	strategies
and	execute	
them	together.	The	school	anticipates	using
the	same	strategies	moving	forward,
including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Family	engagement	events	in	the	first
month	of	school
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Increased	communication	with	incoming
families	
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Econom
ically
Disadva
ntaged

and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral
and/or	academic	standards,	five	teachers	will
call	the	parent	to	convince	them	to	stay
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take
place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,
increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•	New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to
help	students	who	have	a	hard	time
adjusting	to	our	higher	behavior	standards,
include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle
which	allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school
year,	and	observe	them	closely
•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they

•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival
and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral
and/or	academic	standards,	staff	members
will	meet	and	reach	out	to	make	sure	the
person	is	heard	to	have	an	opportunity	to
reconsider.	
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take
place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,
increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•	New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to
help	students	who	have	a	hard	time
adjusting	to	our	higher	behavior	standards,
include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle	which
allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school	year,
and	observe	them	closely
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do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September
regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations
at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•	Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Commit	to	the	low	as	well	as	the	lowest
students	by	spending	more	time	tutoring
both	groups	during	SGI,	lunch,	after	school,
and	Saturday

•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they
do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September
regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations
at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•	Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Support	students	who	are	struggling
academically	by	providing	SGI,	lunch,	after
school,	and	Saturday	instruction

HVA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	developed	retention	strategies
and	executed	them	together.	The	school
used	these	strategies,	including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Pot	luck	dinners	during	the	first	week	of
school
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival
and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral

HVA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	develop	retention	strategies
and	execute	them	together.	The	school
anticipates	using	the	same	strategies	moving
forward,	including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Family	Engagement	events	in	the	first
month	of	school.	
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival
and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral
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and/or	academic	standards,	five	teachers	will
call	the	parent	to	convince	them	to	stay
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take
place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,
increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•	New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to
help	students	who	have	a	hard	time
adjusting	to	our	higher	behavior	standards,
include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle
which	allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school
year,	and	observe	them	closely
•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they
do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September

and/or	academic	standards,	staff	members
will	meet	and	reach	out	to	make	sure	the
person	is	heard	to	have	an	opportunity	to
reconsider.	
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take
place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,
increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•	New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to
help	students	who	have	a	hard	time
adjusting	to	our	higher	behavior	standards,
include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle	which
allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school	year,
and	observe	them	closely
•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they
do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
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regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations
at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Commit	to	the	low	as	well	as	the	lowest
students	by	spending	more	time	tutoring
both	groups	during	SGI,	lunch,	after	school,
and	Saturday

students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September
regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations
at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•	Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Support	students	who	are	struggling
academically	by	providing	SGI,	lunch,	after
school	and	Saturday	instruction.

HVA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	developed	retention	strategies
and	executed	them	together.	The	school
used	these	strategies,	including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Pot	luck	dinners	during	the	first	week	of
school
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival
and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral
and/or	academic	standards,	five	teachers	will
call	the	parent	to	convince	them	to	stay	
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take
place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,

HVA	has	a	preventive	and	comprehensive
approach	towards	retention.	Our	teachers
and	principals	develop	retention	strategies
and	execute	them	together.	The	school
anticipates	using	the	same	strategies	moving
forward,	including:
•	Overall	Family	Relationships	and
Communications.	Take	steps	to	further
develop	positive	family	relationships,	such	as
•	Family	Engagement	events	in	the	first
month	of	school.	
•	Positive	phone	calls	home	during	the	first
week	of	school
•	Chatting	with	parents	outside	during	arrival
and	dismissal	even	when	not	officially	on
duty
•	When	parents	become	frustrated	and	want
to	leave	because	of	how	hard	it	is	for	their
child	to	adjust	to	the	higher	behavioral
and/or	academic	standards,	staff	members
will	meet	and	reach	out	to	make	sure	the
person	is	heard	to	have	an	opportunity	to
reconsider.
•	Improving	the	quality	and	increased	the
quantity	of	summer	home	visits	that	take



7	/	8

Student
s	with
Disabilit
ies

increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to	help
students	who	have	a	hard	time	adjusting	to
our	higher	behavior	standards,	include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle
which	allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school
year,	and	observe	them	closely
•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they
do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September
regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations

place	after	students	are	accepted	in	the
lottery	but	before	the	school	year	begins,
increasing	the	specificity	of	our	expectations.
•	Deans	and	Social	Workers	collaborating	as
the	Student	and	Family	Support	team	to
proactively	create	home school	partnership
opportunities	as	well	as	being	available	to
immediately	address	parent	concerns.
•	New	Student	Acclimation.	Strategies	to
help	students	who	have	a	hard	time
adjusting	to	our	higher	behavior	standards,
include:
•	Beginning	each	day	with	a	whole	group
Morning	Meeting	where	students	are	greeted
respectfully	and	joyfully	by	all	members	of
the	class.	Morning	Meeting	includes
opportunities	to	discuss	feelings	and
expectations.	A	portion	of	Morning	Meeting	is
dedicated	to	self reflection	and	goal	setting.
•	Ending	each	day	with	a	Closing	Circle	which
allows	students	to	reflect	on	their	day,
acknowledge	peers	who	supported	their
learning,	provide	apologies	for	any	harm
done	to	the	community	and	set	goals	for	the
following	day.
•	Throughout	September,	teachers	observe
each	other’s	classrooms	during	their	free
periods	all	day,	then	meet	every	evening	to
debrief	about	their	students	and	devise
strategies	to	improve	behavior	and	habits
•	Identify	students	who	will	struggle	with
behavior	as	follows:
•	Interview	the	students	during	orientation	
teachers	developed	a	20 question	interview
protocol	focused	on	behavior
•	Teachers	intensively	co observe	in
classrooms	throughout	the	day	during	the
first	month	of	school
•	Principals	put	students	in	strategic
situations	in	the	first	week	of	the	school	year,
and	observe	them	closely
•	Provide	intensive	support	to	students	on	a
daily	basis,	coaching	them	in	how	to	change
their	behavior	habits	and	insisting	that	they
do	so
•	Increase	communication	early	in	the	year
by	teachers	and	deans	with	new	parents	of
students	who	are	struggling	with	behavior.
Follow up	calls	daily	during	September
regarding	student	behavior,	progress,	and	to
build	the	relationship	with	the	families	so
that	we’re	on	the	same	team	working
together	to	help	the	child	successfully	meet
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at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•	Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Commit	to	the	low	as	well	as	the	lowest
students	by	spending	more	time	tutoring
both	groups	during	SGI,	lunch,	after	school,
and	Saturday

the	higher	behavior	standards
•	Provide	advice	to	parents	regarding	how
they	can	reinforce	our	behavior	expectations
at	home,	e.g.	respectful	speech,	actions	and
gestures,	etc.	We	do	this	through	a	variety	of
pre planned	workshops.
•	Academic	Supports.	Strategies	to	maximize
the	number	of	students	who	are	promoted	to
the	next	each	year	grade	include:
•	Focus	the	school’s	staffing,	scheduling	and
budget	on	our	reading	program	to	provide
more	instructional	time	and	smaller	class
sizes
•	Conduct	running	records	frequently,	so
reading	teachers	get	to	know	each	new
student	individually,	early	in	the	year
•	Ensure	adequate	quantity	and	quality	of
tutoring	and	SGI	(Small	Group	Instruction)
•	Support	students	who	are	struggling
academically	by	providing	SGI,	lunch,	after
school	and	Saturday	instruction.
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Entry	11	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator
Attrition
Last	updated:	07/31/2019

Report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing.

Instructions	for	completing	the	Classroom	Teacher	and	Administrator	Attrition	Tables
Charter	schools	must	complete	the	tables	titled	2018-2019	Classroom	Teacher	and
Administrator	Attrition	to	report	changes	in	teacher	and	administrator	staffing
during	the	2018-2019	school	year.	Please	provide	the	full	time	equivalent	(FTE)	of
staff	on	June	30,	2018;	the	FTE	for	any	departed	staff	from	July	1,	2018	through	June
30,	2019;	the	FTE	for	added	staff	from	July	1,	2018	through	June	30,	2019;	and	the
FTE	of	staff	added	in	newly	created	positions	from	July	1,	2018	through	June	30,	2019
using	the	tables	provided.

1.	Classroom	Teacher	Attrition	Table

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	on
6/30/18

FTE	Classroom
Teachers
Departed	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Filling
Vacant	Positions
7/1/18	 	6/30/19

FTE	Classroom
Teachers	Added
in	New	Positions
7/1/18	 	6/30/19

FTE	of
Classroom
Teachers	on
6/3019

106 60 39 0 85

2.	Administrator	Position	Attrition	Table

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/18

FTE
Administrators
Departed	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrators
Filling	Vacant
Positions	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrators
Added	in	New
Positions	7/1/18
	6/30/19

FTE
Administrative
Positions	on
6/30/19

4 2 2 4 8
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3.	Tell	your	school's	story

Charter	schools	may	provide	additional	information	in	this	section	of	the	Annual
Report	about	their	respective	teacher	and	administrator	attrition	rates	as	some
teacher	or	administrator	departures	do	not	reflect	advancement	or	movement	within
the	charter	school	networks.	Schools	may	provide	additional	detail	to	reflect	a
teacher’s	advancement	up	the	ladder	to	a	leadership	position	within	the	network	or
an	administrator’s	movement	to	lead	a	new	network	charter	school.
	

(No	response)

4.	Charter	schools	must	ensure	that	all	prospective	employees	receive	clearance
through	the	NYSED	Office	of	School	Personnel	Review	and	Accountability	(OSPRA)
prior	to	employment.	After	an	employee	has	been	cleared,	schools	are	required	to
maintain	proof	of	such	clearance	in	the	file	of	each	employee.	For	the	safety	of	all
students,	charter	schools	must	take	immediate	steps	to	terminate	the	employment	of
individuals	who	have	been	denied	clearance.	Once	the	employees	have	been
terminated,	the	school	must	terminate	the	request	for	clearance	in	the	TEACH
system.		
	
Have	all	employees	have	been	cleared	through	the	NYSED	TEACH	system?
	

Yes

5.	For	perspective	or	current	employees	whose	clearance	has	been	denied,	have	you
terminated	their	employment	and	removed	them	from	the	TEACH	system?

Not	Applicable

Thank	you






